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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

I n  t h e  M a t t e r  o f  

INVESTORS FINANCIAL PLANNING, I N C .  
( F i l e  No. 8-15278) 

NATIONAL EXECUTIVE PLANNERS, LTD. 
D A N  K I N G  B R A I N A R D  

( F i l e  No. 801-11187) INITIAL DECISION 
HENRY LEROY HEYBROCK 
R I C H A R D  0 .  WHITE 

APPEARANCES: 	 J o s e p h  L. Grant  and R.W. J o n e s ,  
a t t o r n e y s ,  A t l a n t a  Reg iona l  O f f i c e ,  
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BEFORE : Ralph Hunter  T r a c y ,  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  
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T h i s  i s  a p u b l i c  p r o c e e d i n g  i n s t i t u t e d  by Commission Order  

( O r d e r )  d a t e d  November 3 ,  1981,  p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n s  1 5 ( b )  and  

l g ( h )  o f  t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange Act o f  1934 (Exchange A c t ) ,  

and  S e c t i o n s  2 0 3 ( e )  and  2 0 3 ( f )  o f  t h e  I n v e s t m e n t  A d v i s e r s  Act 

of 1940 ( A d v i s e r s  A c t ) ,  t o  d e t e r m i n e  whe the r  t h e  above named 

r e s p o n d e n t s  commit ted  v a r i o u s  c h a r g e d  v i o l a t i o n s  o f  t h o s e  Ac t s  

and t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Act o f  1933 ( S e c u r i t i e s  A c t ) ,  and  r e g u l a t i o n s  

t h e r e u n d e r ,  as a l l e g e d  by t h e  D i v i s i o n  o f  Enforcement  ( D i v i s i o n )  

and t h e  r e m e d i a l  a c t i o n ,  i f  a n y ,  t h a t  might  b e  a p p r o p r i a t e  i n  

t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t .  

The p r o c e e d i n g  h a s  been  d e t e r m i n e d  as t o  3  r e s p o n d e n t s  who 

s u b m i t t e d  o f f e r s  o f  s e t t l e m e n t  which were a c c e p t e d ,  by t h e  Com- 

m i s s i o n .  -1/ T h e r e f o r e ,  t h i s  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  i s  a p p l i c a b l e  o n l y  

t o  t h e  r e m a i n i n g  r e s p o n d e n t s  a l t h o u g h ,  i n  view o f  t h e  n a t u r e  o f  

t h e  c h a r g e s  and  t h e  f a c t u a l  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  i t  may, a l s o , '  i n v o l v e  

f i n d i n g s  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  some o r  a l l  o f  t h e  o t h e r  r e s p o n d e n t s .  

The Orde r  a l l e g e s ,  i n  s u b s t a n c e ,  t h a t  t h e  r e m a i n i n g  r e spon-  

d e n t s ,  N a t i o n a l  E x e c u t i v e  P l a n n i n g ,  L t d ,  (NEP) ,  I n v e s t o r s  F i n a n c i a l  

P l a n n i n g ,  I n c .  ( I F P ) ,  Dan King B r a i n a r d  ( B r a i n a r d ) ,  Henry Leroy 

Heybrock (Heybrock)  and  R i c h a r d  0 .  White ( W h i t e ) ,  w i l f u l l y  v io -  

l a t e d  a n d / o r  w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and  a b e t t e d  v i o l a t i o n s  o f  S e c t i o n s ,  
'L 

5 ( a ) ,  5 ( c ) ,  1 7 ( a ) ( 1 ) ( 2 )  and ( 3 )  o f  t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  A c t ,  S e c t i o n s  

. - 1 0 ( b )  and  1 5 ( a )  of t h e  Exchange Act and Rule  lob-5  t h e r e u n d e r  and 

S e c t i o n s  2 0 3 ( a ) ,  2 0 6 ( 1 )  and  2 0 6 ( 2 )  o f  t h e  A d v i s e r s  Ac t .  

-1/ The Commission h a s  a c c e p t e d  o f f e r s  o f  s e t t l e m e n t  from Wi l l i am 
H .  Ca in  and  B a r r y  Eugene Weed, S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange Act R e l e a s e  
No. 18703/  May 3,  1982;  and  H a l t o n  Q .  B i t t i c k  S e c u r i t i e s  
Exchange Act R e l e a s e  No. 19043bSeptember  8, 1962 ,  
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The Order included an allegation that on November 27, 1978, 


the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina 


entered preliminary injunctions against NEP, Brainard, Heybrock 


and White enjoining them from further violations of Sections 5(a), 


5(c) and 17(a) of the Securities Act; Sections 10(b) and 15(a)(l) 


of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder; and Sections 203(a), 


206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act. On September 10, 1981 


Heybrock and White were permanently enjoined from violating the 


above mentioned provisions by the same court. 


The Order also includes an allegation that on May 8, 1980, 


Brainard was convicted by the U.S. District Court for the Middle 


District of North Carolina on 13 counts of mail fraud involving 


the offer and sale of securities. This conviction is presently 


on appeal. 


The evidentiary hearing was held at Greensboro, North Carolina 

from March 29 to April 6, 1982. IFF was not represented and 

Heybrock appeared --pro se but all of the other respondents were 


represented by counsel although Brainard did not appear at the 


hearing-. Proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law and sup- 


porting briefs were filed by all parties except IFP. 


The findings and conclusions herein are based upon the pre- 


ponderance of the evidence as determined from the record and upon 


observation of the witnesses. 


FINDINGS OF FACT AND LAW 


Respondents 


investors Financial Planning, Inc. (IFP) was incorporated 


in North Carolina on September 26, 1969, and its principal place 
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o f  b u s i n e s s  i s  i n  Greensboro ,  North C a r o l i n a .  IFP h a s  been 

r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  t h e  Commission as  a b r o k e r - d e a l e r  s i n c e  November 

3 0 ,  1969,  and i s  a member o f  t h e  N a t i o n a l  A s s o c i a t i o n  o f  Secur-

i t i e s  D e a l e r s ,  I n c .  (NASD). Although IFP f i l e d  a n  appearance  

i n  t h i s  p r o c e e d i n g  i t  was n o t  r e p r e s e n t e d  a t  t h e  h e a r i n g  and h a s  

n o t  f i l e d  proposed f i n d i n g s  of f a c t  o r  c o n c l u s i o n s  o f  l a w  o r  a 

b r i e f  i n  s u p p o r t .  

N a t i o n a l  E x e c u t i v e  P l a n n e r s ,  L t d .  (NEP) i s  a North C a r o l i n a  

c o r p o r a t i o n  which was purchased  by Ha l ton  Q.  B i t t i c k  ( B i t t i c k )  

and a n o t h e r  p a r t n e r  i n  1972.  A t  t h a t  t i m e  i t  s o l d  o n l y  i n s u r a n c e .  

During t h e  p e r t i n e n t  p e r i o d  h e r e i n  i t  engaged i n  t h e  o f f e r  and 

s a l e  o f  mutua l  f u n d s ,  l i m i t e d  p a r t n e r s h i p s ,  s t o c k s ,  bonds and 

o t h e r  s e c u r i t i e s .  NEP a l s o  o f f e r e d  i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i c e  t o  i n d i v i d -

u a l s  and i t s  employees were known a s  " f i n a n c i a l  p lanners . ! '  The 

sa lesmen were r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  t h e  NASD t h r o u g h  IFP which was t h e  

b r o k e r - d e a l e r  on a l l  t r a n s a c t i o n s .  I n  l a t e  1972 Dan King Bra ina rd  

( B r a i n a r d )  became a p a r t n e r  i n  NEP. 

Dan King B r a i n a r d  ( B r a i n a r d )  was born  i n  Greensboro ,  Nor th  

C a r o l i n a  on August 8 ,  1946.  He s e r v e d  i n  t h e  U.S. Navy from 

August 1965 u n t i l  August 1969.  T h e r e a f t e r  he a t t e n d e d  t h e  Uni- 

v e r s i t y  o f  North C a r o l i n a  a t  Greensboro f o r  3 y e a r s  where he 

s t u d i e d  b u s i n e s s  and f i n a n c e  bu t  d i d  n o t  o b t a i n  a  d e g r e e .  I n  

1972,  w h i l e  s t i l l  i n  c o l l e g e ,  he  began working f o r  a f i r m  by t h e  

name o f  R e g i s t e r e d  Funds which l a t e r  changed i t s  name t o  Con- 

f e r e n c e  Concepts .  He was h i r e d  as a t r a i n e e  i n  t h e  s a l e  of  i n -

s u r a n c e  and mutua l  f u n d s .  While t h e r e  he met B i t t i c k .  I n  1972 



and e a r l y  1973  h e  w a s  employed by Bruce B a i l e y  i n  High Po in t . ,  

Nor th  C a r o l i n a ,  s e l l i n g  m u t u a l  f u n d s  and i n s u r a n c e .  I n  1973  

h e  was a p p r o a c h e d  by B i t t i c k  t o  buy i n t o  NEP. B r a i n a r d  pur -  

chased  a 30% i n t e r e s t  and became a d i r e c t o r  and  v i c e - p r e s i d e n t ,  

and  t h e r e a f t e r  f rom J u n e  1976 ,  t o  a t  l e a s t  November 1978 ,  h e  

s e r v e d  a s  p r e s i d e n t ,  d i r e c t o r ,  and  m a j o r i t y  s h a r e h o l d e r  o f  NEP. 

He was a l s o  a s h a r e h o l d e r ,  o f f i c e r  and d i r e c t o r  o f  IFP  from 

a b o u t  J u l y  1975  u n t i l  J u l y  1976.  He h a s  been  r e g i s t e r e d  i n d i -

v i d u a l l y  w i t h  t h e  Commission as  a n  i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i s e r  s i n c e ,  

December 1 5 ,  1975 .  

R i c h a r d  0 .  Whi te  was b o r n  on O c t o b e r  24,  1945.  He r e c e i v e d  

a B.A.  i n  zoo logy  from Arkansas  S t a t e  U n i v e r s i t y  i n  1968 and 

was employed a s  a s a l e s m a n  by t h e  Upjohn Co. from September  

1968 t o  November 1973 .  Be  w a s  s e l f - employed  from November 1973 

u n t i l  May 1, 1974 when h e  became a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  NEP as a s a l e s -

man. I n  1976 h e  p u r c h a s e d a  2 0 % i n t e r e s t  i n  NEP f o r  $20,000 and 

became a d i r e c t o r  and  v i c e - p r e s i d e n t .  S u b s e q u e n t l y ,  he  was i n  

c h a r g e  o f  t r a i n i n g  sa l e smen  a t  NEP and was a r e g i s t e r e d  r e p r e -  

s e n t a t i v e  w i t h  IFP .  Al so ,  he w a s  c e r t i f i e d  as a f i n a n c i a l  

p l a n n e r  by t h e  I n v e s t m e n t  T r a i n i n g  I n s t i t u t e  o f  A t l a n t a .  

Henry L. Heybrock  was b o r n  A p r i l  28, 1933 .  He g r a d u a t e d  

from S t e v e n s  I n s t i t u t e  of  Technology as a mechan ica l  e n g i n e e r  

i n  1959.  From J u n e  1959 u n t i l  J u n e  1974 h e  w a g  employed a s  an  

e n g i n e e r  w i t h  t h e  Western  E l e c t r i c  Co. He w a s  w i t h  Confe rence  

Concep t s ,  a b r o k e r - d e a l e r ,  from A p r i l  1974 t o  May 1975  when he 



Joined IFP and NEP. In 1976 he purchased a 20% in t e re s t  i n  NEP and sub- 

sequently became vice-president and director .  He was a regis tered repre- 

sentative with IFP. He i s  a graduate of the  Investment Training I n s t i t u t e  

of Atlanta and ce r t i f i ed  as a f inancial  planner. 

Sheldon Moss (Moss ) , age 48, was not named as a respondent i n  t h i s  

proceeding but was one of the  defendants i n  the  secur i t ies  mail fraud i n  

which Brainard and Bi t t ick  were convicted. He pleaded gui l ty  and i s  pres-

ent ly  serving a 5 year prison term. He maintained of f ices  i n  Chicago, 

I l l i n o i s ,  and was president of Correlated Equities (Correlated) and i t s  

subsidiary Television Marketing Corp. (TVM) both I l l i n o i s  corporations. 

On September 17, 1972, the  Commission obtained an injunction against Moss, 

Brokers F i r s t  Mortgage Corporation, and Correlated i n  the  U.S. Dis t r ic t  Court 

fo r  the  Northern Dis t r ic t  of I l l i n o i s ,  enjoining them f'rom violations of 

the Securi t ies  Act and the Exchange Act i n  the  o f f e r  o r  s a l e  of secur i t ies .  

During par t  of the pertinent period covered i n  this proceeding he was a 

partner i n  both NEP and IW. 

Although Halton Q. Bi t t ick  (Bit t ick)  i s . n o  longer. a respondent -2/ his 

key ro l e  i n  the a c t i v i t i e s  herein require a br ief  sketch of his career. He 

was born on July 28, 1931, i n  Wichita Fa l l s ,  Texas, attended high school i n  

Phoenix, Arizona, and a f t e r  mil i tary service,  California Polytech but did 

not receive a degree. In  1965 he went t o  work fo r  Registered Funds, a-. 
broker-dealer, i n  Fayettevil le,  North Carolina, as a regis tered representa- 

t ive .  In  1976 he was promoted t o  d i s t r i c t  manager i n  the  Tiale$&?, North 

Carolina, off ice  of Registered Funds, and i n  1969 was transferred t o  Greens- 

boro as regional vice-president i n  charge of sales .  Registered Funds changed 

i t s  name t o  Conference Concepts about 1970. Bi t t ick  l e f t  i n  January 1972 

-2/ A t  the commencement of these proceedings Bit t ick submitted an offer  of 
settlement and did not appear at  the  hearing except as a wltness called 
by the Division. 



when he purchased a cont ro l l ing  i n t e r e s t  in NEP. Bi t t i ck  was president,  

d i rec tor  and cont ro l l ing  shareholder of NEP u n t i l  July 1976, when he sold 

h i s  i n t e r e s t  t o  Brainard and became control l ing shareholder of IFP. He 

served as president of IFP from about June 1976 u n t i l  about June 1980. 

Injunctions and Conviction Chargeable t o  Respondents 

Section 15(b)  of the  Exchange Act provides t ha t  a previous conviction 

o r  an injunction may serve a s  a bas i s  f o r  barring a person from association 

with a broker-dealer o r  t he  imposition of l e s s e r  sanctions. -3/ 

The O r d e r  a l l e g e s ,  a n d  t h e  r e c o r d  e s t a b l i s h e s ,  t h a t  on 

November 27,  1 9 7 8 ,  t h e  U.S. D i s t r i c t  Cour t  f o r  t h e  Middle  

D i s t r i c t  o f  N o r t h  C a r o l i n a  e n t e r e d  p r e l i m i n a r y  i n j u n c t i o n s  

-3/ Section 15(b)  (6)  provfdes as follows: 

" (6 )  The Commission, by order,  s h a l l  censure o r  place l imita t ions  on t he  
a c t i v i t i e s  o r  functions of any person associated,  o r  seeking t o  become 
associated,  with a broker dealer,  o r  suspend f o r  a period not exceeding 
twelve m n t h s  o r  bar any such person f'rom being associated with a broker 
o r  dealer ,  if the  Canrmission finds,  on the  record a f t e r  not ice  and oppor- 
tun i ty  f o r  hearing, t h a t  such censure, placing of l imita t ions ,  suspension, 
o r  bar i s  in the  public i n t e r e s t  and that such person has committed o r  
omitted any a c t  o r  omission enumerated i n  subparagraph (A), (D) , o r  (E) of 
paragraph (4) of t h i s  subsection, has been convicted of any offense speci- 
f i e d  i n  subparagraph (B) of sa id  paragraph (4)  within t e n  years of the  com- 
mencement of the  proceedings under t h i s  paragraph, o r  is  enjoined from any 
action,  conduct, o r  p rac t ice  specified i n  subparagraph (C) of sa id  paragraph 
(4) , r r  

~ u b ~ a r a g r a ~ h s(B) and ( C )  provide t h a t :  

(B) has been convicted within t en  years preceding the  f i l i n g  of any appli- 
cat ion f o r  r eg i s t r a t i on  o r  at any time thereaf te r  of any felony o r  misde- 
meanor which t he  Conmission f inds  -

(i) involves t h e  purchase o r  s a l e  of any secur i ty  . . . 
(C) i s  permanently o r  temporarily enjoined by order, judgment, o r  decree of 
any court of competent ju r i sd ic t ion  from ac t ing  as an investment adviser,  
underwriter, broker, dealer ,  o r  municipal s ecu r i t i e s  dealer,  o r  a s  an a f f i l -  
i a t ed  person o r  employee of any investment company, bank, o r  insurance company, 
o r  from engaging i n  o r  continuing any conduct o r  pract ice  i n  connection with 
any such a c t i v i t y ,  o r  i n  connection with the  purchase o r  s a l e  of any security,'.! 
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a g a i n s t  NEP, B r a i n a r d ,  Heybrock and  White  e n j o i n i n g  them from 

f u r t h e r  v i o l a t i o n s  o f  S e c t i o n s  5 ( a ) ,  5 ( c )  and  l 7 ( a )  o f  t h e  

S e c u r i t i e s  Act ;  S e c t i o n s  1 0 ( b )  and  1 5 ( a ) ( l )  o f  t h e  Exchange 

Act and Rule  l ob -5  t h e r e u n d e r ;  and  S e c t i o n s  2 0 3 ( a ) ,  2 0 6 ( 1 )  and 

2 0 6 ( 2 )  o f  t h e  A d v i s e r s  A c t .  On September  1 0 ,  1 9 8 1 ,  Heybrock 

and White were p e r m a n e n t l y  e n j o i n e d  by c o n s e n t  f rom v i o l a t i n g  

t h e s e  same p r o v i s i o n s .  On May 8 ,  1980 ,  B r a i n a r d  was c o n v i c t e d  

i n  t h e  same c o u r t  on 1 3  c o u n t s  o f  m a i l  f r a u d  i n v o l v i n g  t h e  

o f f e r  and  s a l e  o f  s e c u r i t i e s .  

Background 

N a t i o n a l  E x e c u t i v e  P l a n n e r s ,  L t d . ,  (NEP) was founded  i n  1970  

a s  a  Nor th  C a r o l i n a  c o r p o r a t i o n  w i t h  o f f i c e s  i n  Greensboro ,  

Nor th  C a r o l i n a .  It was o r i g i n a l l y  a n  i n s u r a n c e  agency  b u t  f o l -

lowing  i t s  p u r c h a s e  by B i t t i c k  i n  J a n u a r y  1972 i t  expanded  i n t o  

o t h e r  f i e l d s .  B r a i n a r d  j o i n e d  t h e  f i r m  i n  l a t e  1972 ,  and  he 

and She ldon  Moss l a t e r  became e q u a l  p a r t n e r s  w i t h  B i t t i c k .  Under 

t h e  d i r e c t i o n  o f  B i t t i c k ,  and  l a t e r  B r a i n a r d ,  NEP became a n  i n -

ves tmen t  and f i n a n c i a l  p l a n n i n g  s e r v i c e  d e a l i n g  i n  m u t u a l  f u n d s ,  

l i m i t e d  p a r t n e r s h i p s ,  t a x  s h e l t e r s ,  r e t i r e m e n t  p l a n s ,  commerc ia l  

p a p e r ,  s t o c k s  and  bonds ,  g o l d ,  s i l v e r ,  r a r e  c o i n s  and  diamonds.  

It was n e v e r  r e g i s t e r e d  as a b r o k e r - d e a l e r  b u t  c h a n n e l e d  a l l  

m u t u a l  fund  and s e c u r i t i e s  t r a n s a c t i o n s  t h r o u g h  Confe rence  Con- 

c e p t s ,  a r e g i s t e r e d  b r o k e r - d e a l e r .  A l l  s a l e s m e n  employed by NEP 

were c o n s i d e r e d  " i n d e p e n d e n t  c o n t r a c t o r s 1 '  and  were  r e q u i r e d  t o  

become r e g i s t e r e d  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  w i t h  Confe rence  Concep t s  and  

l a t e r  IFP.  



I n v e s t o r s  F i n a n c i a l  P l a n n i n g ,  I n c . ,  ( I F P )  a  r e g i s t e r e d  

b r o k e r - d e a l e r ,  was a c q u i r e d  i n  May 1975 by B i t t i c k ,  B r a i n a r d  

and  Moss, a s  o n e - t h i r d  p a r t n e r s .  T h e r e a f t e r ,  a l l  NEP b r o k e r a g e  

b u s i n e s s  was t r a n s a c t e d  t h r o u g h  IFP.  On J u l y  6 ,  1976  NEP and 

IFP e n t e r e d  i n t o  a n  ag reemen t  whereby B r a i n a r d  bought  o u t  Moss 

and  B i t t i c k  and  became p r e s i d e n t  o f  NEP w h i l e  B i t t i c k  became 

p r e s i d e n t  o f  IFF.  IFF was t o  pay NEP 7 0 %  o f  commiss ions  r e -

c e i v e d  on b u s i n e s s  s u b m i t t e d  by NEP. A l s o ,  a l l  p r e s e n t  and  

f u t u r e  s a l e smen  o f  NEP were t o  be  r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  IFP as NASD 

r e g i s t e r e d  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s .  

I n  J u l y  o f  1973 ,  B r a i n a r d  r e c e i v e d  a t e l e p h o n e  c a l l  a t  

NEP's o f f i c e  i n  Greensboro  from Moss i n  Chicago  c o n c e r n i n g  a n  

i n v e s t m e n t  which NEP migh t  be  i n t e r e s t e d  i n  s e l l i n g  t o  i t s  

c l i e n t s .  T h i s  i n v e s t m e n t  was T e l e v i s i o n  M a r k e t i n g  (TVM) which 

Moss e x p l a i n e d  as a f i x e d  p r i n c i p a l  i n v e s t m e n t  p a y i n g  i n t e r e s t .  

B r a i n a r d  had  met Moss b r i e f l y  i n  1972 when B r a i n a r d  was w i t h  

Bruce  B a i l e y  and  Moss had come t o  Greensboro  l o o k i n g  f o r  someone 

t o  h a n d l e  r e g i o n a l  s a l e s  o f  f i r s t  m o r t g a g e s  which  h e  had ad-  

v e r t i s e d  i n  t h e  Wall S t r e e t  J o u r n a l .  -4/ B r a i n a r d  and B i t t i c k  

had f u r t h e r  d i s c u s s i o n s  w i t h  Moss by t e l e p h o n e  a b o u t  TVM and 

i t  was d e c i d e d  t h a t  B r a i n a r d  s h o u l d  go  t o  Chicago  and i n v e s -  

t i g a t e  t h e  company. On August 8 ,  1973 ,  B r a i n a r d  f l e w  t o  Chicago  

where  h e  s p e n t  the day w i t h  Moss, r e t u r n i n g  t o  Greensboro  t h a t  

4/' The f i r s t  mor tgages  a p p a r e n t l y  were t h o s e  o f  B r o k e r s  F i r s t  -
Mortgage w h i c h , t o g e t h e r  w i t h  Moss, had been  e n j o i n e d  by t h e  
SEC on September  27,  1972 .  B r a i n a r d  h a s  a d m i t t e d  s e l l i n g  
a t  l eas t  one o f  t h e s e  m o r t g a g e s .  



evening. 


Moss explained to Brainard that TVM was a marketing firm 


which would market products brought to it by manufacturers or 


investors for a fee or an interest in the product. A sep-

* 

arate corporation in which TVM would have ownership would 


be formed for each product. The product was then to be promoted 


by television advertising in a certain area and TVM would 


produce the commercial and pay for the air time. The retail 


chain stores in the area would then be contacted and shown 


the commercial and, if they purchased the product, they would 


be listed in the commercial as the place to obtain the product. 


Moss represented that TVM was producing commercials for such 


large chains as K-Mart, J.C. Penney, Sears and others. 


Moss told Brainard that TVM incurred costs in developing 

and manufactu'ring the product, producing and running the com- 

mercials and paying commissions to salesmen and that the retai.1 

stores sometimes took 90 to 180 days to pay and, therefore, 

TVM had a cash flow problem. As a result TVM had to use the 

receivables due as collateral with banks and factors who would 

charge TVM 3 and 4 percent a month to borrow against the re- 

ceivables. Moss wanted Brainard to sell the TVM accounts re- 

ceivable to his clients and pay 1% a month. NEP would receive 

a 1/2% per month on all sales. A portion of a receivable from 

a retailer would be assigned to the client at a fixed rate, and 

the client would receive a State of Illinois FormucC-2showing 

the assignment of such portion in the amount of 120% of the 
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amount t h e  NEP c l i e n t  would i n v e s t .  -5/ 

Moss t o l d  B r a i n a r d  t h a t  t h i s  w a s  n o t  a s e c u r i t y ,  t h a t  he 

had t a k e n  i t  t o  h i s  a t t o r n e y s  and  a s k e d  them t o  h e l p  him 

s t r u c t u r e  i t  s o  t h a t  h e  would n o t  have  a s e c u r i t i e s  p rob lem 

w i t h  t h i s  one ,  and  t h e y  had  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  s t r u c t u r e d  i t  as a n  

ass ignmef i t  o f  a r e c e i v a b l e ,  and  n o t  a  p r o m i s s o r y  n o t e ,  i n  

o r d e r  t o  a v o i d  any  s e c u r i t i e s  p rob lem.  Moss made t h e  p o i n t  t h a t  

i n  B r o k e r s  F i r s t  Mortgage t h e y  had  a p r o m i s s o r y  note t o  pay 

and t h e  SEC had d e c l a r e d  it t o  b e  a s e c u r i t y  and  had s t o p p e d  

him f rom s e l l i n g  i t .  

Subsequen t  t o  h i s  t r i p  t o  Ch icago ,  B r a i n a r d  r e q u e s t e d  t h e  

Nor th  C a r o l i n a  N a t i o n a l  Bank t o  o b t a i n  Dun & B r a d s t r e e t  re-

p o r t s  on t h e  companies  i n  which  Moss had a n  i n t e r e s t ,  i n c l u d i n g  

TVM and  C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s .  B r a i n a r d  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e s e  

p e p o p t s  c n n f i m d  Nossts r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s .  -6/ B r a i n a r d  a l s o  r e -

q u e s t e d  a n d  r e c e i v e d  a f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t  f rom Moss b u t  Moss 

i n s t r u c t e d  him n o t  t o  u s e  any f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s  i n  t h e  

s a l e  o f  'TVM. - A t  B r a i n a r d ' s  r e q u e s t  Moss came t o  Greensbclro i n  

5/- Form UCC-2 has a U n i f o r m  Commercial  Code F i n a n c i n g  S t a t e m e n t  
f i l e d  w i t h  t h e  S t a t e  o f  I l l i n o i s  wh ich  p u r p o r t e d l y  showed 
t h e  t o t a l  v a l u e  o f  t h e  r e c e i v a b l e  d u e ,  f o r  example f rom S e a
and a n  a s s i g n m e n t  t o  t h e  i n v e s t o r  t o  c o v e r  h i s  i n v e s t m e n t .  
D i v i s i o n  E x h i b i t  No. 8 )  

r s ,  
(See  

6/- B r a i n a r d ' d i d  n o t  t e s t i f y  i n  t h i s  p r o c e e d i n g  b u t  p o r t i o n s  o f  
h i s . t e s t i m o n y  a t  h i s  c r i m i n a l  t r i a l  were  p u t  i n  e v i d e n c e  by 
h i s  c o u n s e l  and  t h e  D i v i s i o n .  
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A p r i l  1974 and made a sales  p r e s e n t a t i o n  of t h e  TVM inves tment  

f o r  t h e  NEP sa lesmen.  

Beginning i n  1973 NEP o f f e r e d  and s o l d  TVM i n t e r e s t s  t o  

i n v e s t o r s  i n  North C a r o l i n a .  Between J u l y  1973 and September 

26, 1978, when t h e  S t a t e  of North C a r o l i n a  i s s u e d  a  c e a s e  and 

d e s i s t  o r d e r ,  NEP s o l d  a t  l eas t  $4,375,000 i n  TVM s e c u r i t i e s  

t o  a t  l e a s t  767 i n v e s t o r s .  

TVM was i n c o r p o r a t e d  i n  t h e  S t a t e  of I l l i n o i s  on March 

23, 1972, t o  engage i n  t h e  b u s i n e s s  of m a r k e t i n g  goods and 

s e r v i c e s  t h r o u g h  t h e  u s e  of t e l e v i s i o n  and o t h e r  a d v e r t i s i n g  

media,  It was d i s s o l v e d  on November 16,  1974, a p p a r e n t l y  becoming 

a s u b s i d i a r y  of C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s .  The f u n d s  i n v e s t e d  i n  TVM 

" r e c e i v a b l e s "  were n o t  used  t o  f i n a n c e  t h e  o p e r a t i o n s  of  TVM. 

A l l  of t h e  monies i n v e s t e d  t h r o u g h  NEP were s e n t  t o  Moss, l e s s  

commissions and were used  f o r  h i s  p e r s o n a l  p u r p o s e s .  The money 

i n v e s t e d  by  l a t e r  i n v e s t o r s  was used  t o  pay t h e  " i n t e r e s t "  t o  

' . e a r l i . e r  i n v e s t o r s ;  t o  pay cornrn i s s ions~ to  NEP; t o '  i n v e s t  i n  a 

heavy weight  boxer;  i n  a g o l d  mine i n  Colorado;  i n  c u r r e n c y  o p t i o n s  

on t h e  f o r e i g n  c u r r e n c y  market ;  i n  a m a i l  o r d e r  worm farm; i n  

t h e  development of a r e a l  e s t a t e  s u b d i v i s i o n  i n  Wisconsin,  and 

f o r  v a r i o u s  p e r s o n a l  expenses  and l o a n s  t o  f r i e n d s .  

S e c t i o n  5  V i o l a t i o n s  

The Order a l l e g e s  t h a t  d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  from about  1973 

t o  November 27, 1978, a l l  of t h e  r e s p o n d e n t s  w i l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  



and w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and  a b e t t e d  v i o l a t i o n s  of S e c t i o n s  5 ( a )  

and 5 ( c )  of t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Act i n  t h a t  t h e y  o f f e r e d  t o  s e l l ,  

s o l d  and d e l i v e r e d  a f t e r  s a l e  c e r t a i n  s e c u r i t i e s ,  namely TVM 

e v i d e n c e s  of  i n d e b t e d n e s s ,  when no r e g i s t r a t i o n  s t a t e m e n t  was g, 


on f i l e  o r  i n  e f f e c t  a s  t o  s a i d  s e c u r i t i e s  p u r s u a n t  t o  t h e  

S e c u r i t i e s  Act .  

Respondents  do n o t  d i s p u t e  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  TVM was n o t  

r e g i s t e r e d .  I n  making such  u n r e g i s t e r e d  s a l e s  r e s p o n d e n t s  

r e l i e d  on r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  by Moss and r e p e a t e d . b y  Bra ina rd  t h a t  

t h i s  was l lcommercial  paper1 '  and n o t  a s e c u r i t y .  T h e r e f o r e ,  

t h e r e  was no need t o  r e g i s t e r  i t .  While t h i s  c o n t e n t i o n  was 

made d u r i n g  t h e  c o u r s e  of t h e  h e a r i n g  i t  was n o t  r a i s e d  o r  

a rgued  i n  r e s p o n d e n t s 1  b r i e f s .  

I n  S e c u r i t i e s  and Exchange Commission v .  W . J .  Howey 

-Co., 328 U.S. 293 (1946,) t h e  Supreme Court  h e l d  t h a t  a s e c u r i t y  

can e x i s t  where t h e r e  i s  a n  inves tment  of  money i n  a  common 

e n t e r p r i s e  w i t h  a n  e x p e c t a t i o n  of  p r o f i t s  t o  be d e r i v e d  from 

t h e  e f f o r t s  of  a t h i r d  p a r t y .  

Here t h e r e  were i n v e s t m e n t s  by over  7 0 0  i n d i v i d u a l s  

t o t a l l i n g  more t h a n  f o u r  m i l l i o n  d o l l a r s  i n  t h e  TVM l l r e c e i v a b l e s "  

w i t h  t h e  p romise  of  l a r g e r  t h a n  normal r e t u r n s  o r  p r o f i t s  t o  

be ach ieved  t h r o u g h  t h e  inves tment  p r o f i c i e n c y  of  TVM1s 

management. T h e r e f o r e ,  a l l  of t h e  e lements  e n u n c i a t e d  by t h e  

Court  i n  Howey a r e  p r e s e n t  h e r e  a n d , a c c o r d i n g l y ,  i t  i s  found 
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t h a t  TVM Tmsa s e c u r i t y  and s h o u l d  have  been r e g i s t e r e d .  

The e l e m e n t s  o f  a p r ima  f a c i e  c a s e  f o r  v i o l a t i o n  of  

t h e  r e g i s t r a t i o n  p r o v i s i o n s  of t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  laws have been 

s t a t e d  t o  be: 

"The e s t a b l i s h m e n t  o f  a prima f a c i e  c a s e . . .  
f o r  t h e  a l l e g e d  v i o l a t i o n s  of S e c t i o n  5  
r e q u i r e  ( s )  t h a t  t h e  Commission p rove  t h r e e  
e s s e n t i a l  e l e m e n t s :  (1)no r e g i s t r a t i o n  . s t a t e -  
ment was i n  e f f e c t  as t o  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s ;  ( 2 )  t h e  
d e f e n d a n t  s o l d  o r  o f f e r e d  t o  s e l l  t h e s e  s e c u r i t i e s ;  
and ( 3 )  m a i l s  were used  i n  c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  t h e  
s a l e  o r  o f f e r  o f  s a l e . "  S e c u r i t i e s  and Exchange 
Commission v .  C o n t i n e n t a l  Tobacco Co. o f  s o u t h -  
C a r o l i n a ,  463 F.2d 137,  a t  155 ( C A  5 t h  C i r .  1972) 

A l l  t h r e e  e lements  a r e  c l e a r l y  p r e s e n t  h e r e :  t h e r e  was 

n e v e r  any r e g i s t r a t i o n  on f i l e  o r  i n  e f f e c t  f o r  TVM; 

r e s p o n d e n t s  s o l d  T V M  t o  o v e r  700 i n v e s t o r s ;  and t h e  f u n d s  

r e c e i v e d  from i n v e s t o r s  i n  North C a r o l i n a  were r e g u l a r l y  mai led  

t o  Moss i n  Chicago w h i l e  t h e  monthly i n t e r e s t  checks  were s e n t  

by Moss t o  Chicago t o  NEP o f f i c i a l s  i n  Greensboro  and t h e n  

mai led  t o  i n v e s t o r s .  

Accord ing ly ,  i t  i s  found t h a t  a l l  o f  t h e  r e s p o n d e n t s  

w i l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  and w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and a b e t t e d  v i o l a t i o n s  of 

7 /  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  T V M  o f f e r i n g s  were found t o  be s e c u r i t i e s  -
by the collrtinSEC v .  N a t i o n a l  E x e c u t i v e  P l a n n e r s ,  L t d . ,  503 
F. Supp. 1066 ,1072  (1980) ;  and by t h e  S e c r e t a r y  of S t a t e  
of North C a r o l i n a  i n  a  c e a s e  and d e s i s t  o ~ r d e r  i s s u e d  on 
September 26, 1978.  
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S e c t i o n s  5 ( a )  and 5 ( c )  of  t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Act .  


Anti-Fraud P r o v i s i o n s  

The Order  a l l e g e s  t h a t  d u r i n g  v a r i o u s  p e r i o d s  from about  
E 

1973 t o  November 27, 1978, t h e  r e s p o n d e n t s ,  B r a i n a r d ,  Heybrock, 

White, NEP and IFF w i l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  and w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and 

a b e t t e d  v i o l a t i o n s  of S e c t i o n s  1 7 ( a )( l ) ,1 7 ( a )( 2 )  and 17(a)( 3 )  

of t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Act and S e c t i o n  1 0 ( b ) ( 5 )  of t h e  Exchange Act 

and Rule lob-5 t h e r e u n d e r  i n  c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  t h e  o f f e r ,  s a l e  

and p u r c h a s e  of TVM s e c u r i t i e s  by employing d i r e c t l y  and 

i n d i r e c t l y  d e v i c e s ,  schemes and a r t i f i c e s  t o  d e f r a u d  and by 

means of  unt ru .e  s t a t e m e n t s  of m a t e r i a l  f a c t s  and omiss ions  t o  

s t a t e  m a t e r i a l  f a c t s  i n  o r d e r  t o  make t h e  s t a t e m e n t s  made, i n  

t h e  l i g h t  of t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  under  which t h e y  were made, n o t  
-9 / 

m i s l e a d i n g .  

A s  p a r t  of-  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  conduct  t h e  r e s p o n d e n t s ,  among 

-8/ 	 Willfulness does not require an intent  t o  v io la te  the l a w ,  Tager v. SEC.,-
344 F.2d 5, 8 (C.A. 2, 1965); F i r s t  Pittsburgh Securities Corporation, 
Securities Exchange Act Release No. 16897 (June 16, 1980), 20 SEC docket 
401, 403, n. 10. Scienter is  not required fo r  a section 5 violation, 
see -SEC v. L&S Petroleum, Inc., 44 F. Supp. 38, 40 (W.D. Okla. 1977) 
where the court said: "it i s  apparent from the provisions of Section 5 
of the 1933 Act.. . tha t  Section 5 makes violations of i ts  provisions 
unlawrul regardless of scienter on the art of a defendant." See. a lso  
Feeney v. SEC, 564 F.2d 260, 262 (c.A.*8,  1977), cer t .  denied 435 U.S. 
r n 9 7 8 ) .  
Section 10(b) as here pertinent makes it unlawful fo r  any person t o  use 
or  employ i n  connection with the purchase o r  sa le  of a security any mani-
pulative device or  contrivance i n  contravention of rules  and regulations 
of the C o ~ s s i o n  prescribed thereunder. &le lob-5 defines manipulative 
or  deceptive devices by making it unlawful for  any person i n  such connection: 
"(1)t o  employ any device, scheme, or  a r t i f i c e  t o  defraud, (2) t o  make any 
untrue statement of a material fac t  or t o  omit t o  s t a t e  a m t e r i a l  fac t  
necessary i n  order t o  make the  statements made, i n  the l igh t  of the circum- 
stances under which they were made, not misleading or  (3) t o  engage i n  any 

(continued on next, page) 



o t h e r  t h i n g s ,  would and d i d :  

1. 	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  t h e  " s e c u r i t y  o f f e r e d "  was 
s e c u r e d  by a S e a r s  accoun t  r e c e i v a b l e ,  o r  t h e  
r e c e i v a b l e  of  a n o t h e r  n a t i o n a l l y  known r e t a i l e r ;  

2 .  	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  t h e  TVM s e c u r i t i e s  were 
s a f e  and sound i n v e s t m e n t s ;  

3 .  	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  a n  inves tment  i n  TVM i n v o l v e d  
no o r  minimum r i s k ;  

4 .  	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  t h e  i n t e r e s t  i n  t h e  accoun t  
r e c e i v a b l e  which r e p r e s e n t e d  t h e  i n v e s t o r l s  
c o l l a t e r a l  was f i l e d  w i t h  t h e  S t a t e  of I l l i n o i s ;  

5.  	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  TVM'was a  c o r p o r a t i o n  a f t e r  
November 16,  1974,  when i t  was d i s s o l v e d ;  

6 .  	 F a i l  t o  d i s c l o s e  t h a t  Moss and C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s  
had p r e v i o u s l y  been e n j o i n e d  from f u r t h e r  v i o l a t i o n s  
of  t h e  r e g i s t r a t i o n  and a n t i - f r a u d  p r o v i s i o n s  of t h e  
f e d e r a l  s e c u r i t i e s  laws; 

7. 	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  T V M  and C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s  
were f i n a n c i a l l y  sound; 

8 .  	 F a i l  t o  d i s c l o s e  t h e  amount of commissions r e c e i v e d  
by NEP and i t s  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  i n  c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  
t h e  s a l e  of TVM; 

9. 	 F a l s e l y  r e p r e s e n t  t h a t  a n  i n v e s t m e n t  i n  TVM w a s a s  
sound a s  t h e  r e t a i l  s t o r e  buying t h e  p r o d u c t .  

1 0 .  	 F a i l  t o  d i s c l o s e  t h e  f i n a n c i a l  c o n d i t i o n  of  Moss, 
C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s  o r  TVM. 

NEP began s e l l i n g  TVM s h o r t l y  a f t e r  B r a i n a r d l s  v i s i t  t o  

Moss i n  August 1973 and c o n t i n u e d  u n t i l  September 27 , -  1978, 

when t h e  S t a t e  of North C a r o l i n a  i s s u e d  a  c e a s e  and d e s i s t .  o r d e r .  

-

9/ 	 ( c o n t i n u e d  f rom page 1 4  )-

a c t ,  p r a c t i c e ,  o r  c o u r s e  of  b u s i n e s s  which o p e r a t e s  o r  would 
o p e r a t e  a s  a f r a u d  o r  d e c e i t  upon any pe r son  . . S e c t i o n. ' I  

l 7 ( a )  c o n t a i n s  ana logous  a n t i f r a u d  p r o v i s i o n s .  
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NEP so l i c i t ed  customers by means of a brochure which s e t  fo r th  

v a r i o u s  i n v e s t m e n t  s t r a t e g i e s  and  t h e  p r o f e s s i o n a l  t a l e n t s  o f  

B r a i n a r d ,  White and  Heybrock,  among o t h e r s .  A c o n f i d e n t i a l  

a u e s t i o n n a i r e  would b e  o b t a i n e d  from t h e  p r o s p e c t i v e  i n v e s t o r  

c o n c e r n i n g  h i s  f i n a n c e s  and  a workshee t  would b e  p r e p a r e d  t a i l o r e d  

t o  h i s  i n d i v i d u a l  n e e d s .  T h i s  was u s u a l l y  r e v i e w e d  by B r a i n a r d .  

Recommendations would t h e n  b e  made f o r  i n v e s t m e n t  i n  m u t u a l  

f u n d s ,  s+Qck~ jbonds ,  t a x  s h e l t e r s ,  r e t i r e m e n t  p l a n s  and o t h e r  t h i n g s .  

Many i n v e s t o r s  were a d v i s e d  t o  c o n v e r t  t h e i r  l i f e  i n s u r a n c e ;  

r e f i n a n c e  t h e i r  homes and u s e  o t h e r  means t o  o b t a i n  f u n d s  f o r  

i n v e s t m e n t .  S e v e r a l  i n v e s t o r s  were p e r s u a d e d  t o  i n v e s t  t h e  f u n d s  

i n  t h e i r  Keogh a c c o u n t s  i n  TVM. 

TVM w a s  recommended as  a s a f e  i n v e s t m e n t  i n  which any 

amount c o u l d  b e  i n v e s t e d  from a f e w  hundred  t o  s e v e r a l  t housand  

d o l l a r s .  The i n v e s t m e n t  c o u l d  b e  f o r  a o n e ,  two o r  t h r e e  y e a r  

p e r i o d  and  a t  t h e  end of  e a c h  p e r i o d  t h e  i n v e s t o r  had t h e  o p t i o n  

o f  w i t h d r a w i n g  h i s  o r  h e r  money o r  r e i n v e s t i n g .  A one y e a r  

i n v e s t m e n t  would pay l o % ,  a two y e a r  11%and a t h r e e  y e a r  1 2 % .  

I n  a d d i t i o n  N E P r e c e i v e d  8 %  e v e r y  y e a r  i n  cornmissio'ns w i t h  h a l f  

o r  4 %  g o i n g  t o  t h e  s a l e s m a n ,  I n  o t h e r  words o n a  one  y e a r  con-

t r a c t  NEP would r e c e i v e  8 % ,  on a 2  y e a r ,  1 6 % ,  and  on t h r e e  y e a r s  

24%, w i t h  t h e  commission b e i n g  p a i d  e a c h  y e a r .  

Seven i n v e s t o r  w i t n e s s e s  who t e s t i f i e d  d u r i n g  t h e - c o u r s e  

o f  t h e  h e a r i n g  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e i r  p u r c h a s e s  o f  TVM were i n  g e n e r a l  

agreement  as  t o  t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  made t o  them which induced  



them t o  make such pu rchase s .  They were t o l d  t h a t  t hey  would 

r e c e i v e  a p ro spec tu s  o r  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t emen t  bu t  as a m a t t e r  of  

f a c t  no p r o s p e c t u s  o r  o t h e r  documentat ion concern ing  TVM was 

e v e r  used.  They were t o l d  t h a t  T V M  was as good as Sea r s  and t h a t  

t hey  cou ld  l o s e  o n l y , i f  S e a r s  went broke;  t h a t  TVM was commercial 

paper  r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  t h e  S t a t e  of I l l i n o i s ;  t h a t  t h e r e  was no 

r i s k .  They were no t  t o l d  any th ing  about t h e  f i n a n c i a l  c o n d i t i o n  

of TVM o r  C o r r e l a t e d ;  t h a t  Moss had p r e v i o u s l y  been en jo ined  by 

t h e  SEC; t h a t  T V M  had been d i s s o l v e d  i n  1974; t h a t  commiss.ions 

would be p a i d  every  year  of t h e  inves tment .  

Mrs. T., a n  e l d e r l y  housewife,  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  Heybrock 

recommended T V M  and t o l d  h e r  t h a t  h i s  f ami ly  was i n v e s t i n g  i n  i t  

and thought  i t  was a good i d e a .  She s a i d  t h a t  Heybrock t o l d  

h e r  i t  was backed by Sea r s  and o t h e r  companies. Heybrock d i d  

no t  t e l l  h e r  t h a t  t h e  pe r son  who c o n t r o l l e d  TVM had been p r e v i o u s l y  

en jo ined  f o r  v i o l a t i o n  of t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  laws. I f  he had t o l d  

h e r  she  would no t  have i n v e s t e d .  She i d e n t i f i e s  a l e t t e r  from 

NEP t o  h e r ,  d a t e d  J u l y  5, 1978, which s a y s  TVM i s  now paying 

13 1/2% and t h a t  " t h i s  would be a good t ime  f o r  you t o  i n v e s t . "  

A f t e r  she  g o t  t h e  l e t t e r  she  made ano the r  inves tment  of $1,000. 

She was never  provided wi th  a p rospec tu s .  She i n v e s t e d  f o r  3 

y e a r s  and h e r  t o t a l  inves tment  was $11,000. She was p a i d  a few 

i n t e r e s t  checks ,  bu t  h a s  never  g o t t e n  any of t h e  p r i n c i p a l  back.  

She never  r e c e i v e d  a f i n a n c i a l  s t a t emen t  o r  any w r i t t e n  m a t e r i a l  

about  T V M  o r  C o r r e l a t e d .  She was never  g iven  any in format ion  about  



the management of TVM or Correlated. 

Mr. H., an internal revenue agent, purchased from Heybrock 

who performed an analysis of his financial situation and 

discussed possible investments he might make to gain a better 

yield on some of his assets. When Heybrock recommended TVM he 

explained that it financed receivables for different companies 

that were in need of funds. His investment would be secured by 

Sears & Roebuck receivables due to TVM and the collateral would 

be 120% of the investment. His investment in the accounts re- 

ceivable of Sears was supposed to be registered with the State 

of Illinois, Heybrock never made any comments about risk and H. 

was not furnished any financial information or sales literature on 

T W .  He made a 3 pear investment of $10,000 and assumed there would 

be different collateral furnished as the receivables were paid 

off. He has not received any of the investment back. 

Mr. G,, a salesman, invested through White who told him 

that TVM was a very good investment and very sound. White told 

him that the only way he could lose was that if Sears & Roebuck 

went broke; that the money was loaned to Sears on a short-term 

basis at a high interest rate. He was to receive 12% which was 

higher than similar investments at the tine. White did not 

explain the value of the assets of T'VM and did not show any 

financial information of TV'JI. Mr. G,, asked about the company 

and was told he would receive a prospectus but never did, White 



showed him a  pamphlet of NEP which l i s t e d  d i f f e r e n t  i nves tmen t s ,  

i n c l u d i n g  diamonds. White d i d  n o t  p rov ide  any p r i n t e d  s a l e s  

rr later ial  o r  i n f o r m a t i o n  on TVM. White t o l d  him he would r e c e i v e  

a document showing where h i s  money had been p l a c e d .  The on ly  

t h i n g  he  g o t  looked l i k e  onion s k i n  papep and i t  had on i t  a 

l oan  t o  Sea r s  & Roebuck i n  exce s s  of  $200,000. White d i d  no t  

t e l l  him any th ing  abou t  t h e  f i n a n c i a l  c o n d i t i o n  of TVM o r  who 

c o n t r o l l e d  i t .  White t o l d  him t h e  p r e s i d e n t  of  TVM was M r .  

Moss bu t  d i d  n o t  t e l l  him Moss had been p r e v i o u s l y  e n j o i n e d  f o r  

v i o l a t i o n s  of  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  l aws .  I f  he had been t o l d  t h i s  

he would no t  have i n v e s t e d  i n  TVM. G .  i n v e s t e d  $5,300 f o r  

3  yea r s  and was t o l d  he  cou ld  g e t  t h e  funds  o u t  w i t h i n  a  r e a s o n a b l e  

t ime,  bu t  h a s  g o t t e n  no th ing  back.  He was n o t  t o l d  t h a t  White 

would r e c e i v e  a commission eve ry  y e a r  of h i s  i nves tmen t .  G .  

unders tood NEP t o  be a s t o c k  b rokerage  f i r m  t h a t  s o l d  s e c u r i t i e s .  

Rr. F . ,  amanufa.cturerls r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  from High P o i n t ,  

North C a r o l i n a ,  was r e f e r r e d  t o  White by a f r i e n d .  White t o l d  

him he had some i nves tmen t s  t h a t  p a i d  i n  t h e  range  of  12  and 15% 

and i n  1975 t h a t  was a s  good a s  you cou ld  do  because  t h e  i n t e r e s t  

was 8 o r  9% i n  bonds and s a v i n g s .  F. s a y s  t h a t  h e  a l s o  i n v e s t e d  

i n  TVM th rough  High P o i n t  Bank & T r u s t .  He c l o s e d  ou t  h i s  Keogh 

p l a n  a t  Wachovia Bank and t r a n s f e r r e d  i t  t o  High Po in t  because  

High P o i n t  Bank approved TVM a s  a n  inves tment  whi le  Wachovia d i d  

n o t .  F .  i n v e s t e d  h i s  e n t i r e  Keogh r e t i r e m e n t  of $35,604.01 

i n  TVM. White was aware of  t h i s ,  i n  f a c t  he adv i s ed  him t o  do i t .  



White informed F.  t h a t  he had made a r rangements  w i t h  t h e  

High P o i n t  Bank t o  a c c e p t  t h e s e  k i n d  of i n v e s t m e n t s  i n  Keogh 

P l a n  a c c o u n t s .  F. r e c e i v e d  a Form UCC-2 i n  t h e  m a i l  e v i d e n c i n g  

t h e  c o l l a t e r a l  behind h i s  i n v e s t m e n t .  The f a c t  t h a t  S e a r s  & 

Roebuck was p u r p o r t e d l y  back ing  t h e  inves tment  a f f e c t e d  h i s  

d e c i s i o n  t o  buy T V M .  F.  a l s o  cashed h i s  l i f e  i n s u r a n c e  p o l i c i e s  

and bought te rm i n s u r a n c e  from White and i n v e s t e d  t h e  remain ing  

c a s h  i n  TVM because  it offered a bedte~~ e t m ,  F* asked White 

how s a f e  t h i s  inves tment  was and White s a i d  i t  was as  s a f e  as 

t h e  company t h a t  backed t h e  a c c o u n t s ,  S e a r s  & Roebuck. White 

b rough t  Moss t o  F 1 s  o f f i c e  i n  e a r l y  1978. F. s e l l s  pe t ro leum 

equipment and Moss was head of C o r r e l a t e d  O i l  s o  White though t  

t h e y  might  do  some b u s i n e s s .  Moss t r i e d  t o  s e l l  F. a $25,000 

inves tment  i n  C o r r e l a t e d  O i l  Reclamat ion  b u t  F.  d e c l i n e d .  

White never  t o l d  F.  t h a t  Moss had p r e v i o u s l y  been e n j o i n e d .  I f  

he had known t h a t  he  would n o t  have i n v e s t e d  i n  TVM. White d i d  

n o t  p r o v i d e  him w i t h  any s a l e s  m a t e r i a l  o r  f i n a n c i a l  i n f o r m a t i o n  

concern ing  TVM o r  t e l l  him a n y t h i n g  abou t  t h e  o r g a n i z a t i o n  of 

TVM o r  how long  i t  had been i n  b u s i n e s s .  F. unders tood  t h a t  

TVM was some k i n d  of commercial p a p e r .  F 1 s  f a t h e r  a l s o  i n v e s t e d  

abou t  $33,000 of  h i s  Keogh P l a n  fund a t  High P o i n t  i n  TVM. 

White s o l d  t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  t o  F r s  f a t h e r .  F. i n q u i r e d  a s  t o  why 

he  r e c e i v e d  T V M  i n t e r e s t  checks  i n  C o r r e l a t e d  enve lopes  and was 

t o l d  by White t h a t  TVM and C o r r e l a t e d  were a l l  p a r t  of t h e  same 

company r u n  by Moss. 
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M r .  J . G .  i s  a sa l e sman  who was v i s i t e d  by B i t t i c k  who 

t o l d  him t h a t  TVM was d e e p l y  i n v o l v e d  i n  ongoing  sales  

promot ion  n o t  o n l y  w i t h  S e a r s  b u t  w i t h  Zayre and  K - M a r t .  

Moss came t o  Greensboro  and J . G .  had l u n c h  w i t h  Moss and  B i t t i c k .  

Moss t o l d  him t h e  same t h i n g  a s  B i t t i c k .  Moss s a i d  t h a t  i f  

h e  was not happy w i t h  S e a r s  t h e y  c o u l d  f i x  him up w i t h  Zayre 

o r  K - M a r t  o r  w h a t e v e r ,  since they were a l l  comparable. J . G .  put 

i n  $15,000 f o r  one  y e a r  a t  1 0 %  and h i s  w i f e  i n v e s t e d  $10,000 

f o r  t h r e e  y e a r s  a t  12%.  T h i s  was i n  A p r i l  1977 and i t  t o o k  

a b o u t  t h r e e  weeks f o r  t h e  c h e c k s  t o  s t a r t  coming. B i t t i c k  l e d  

J . G .  t o  b e l i e v e  t h a t  NEP had  a comple te  p r o d u c t  l i n e  o f  i n v e s t -  

ment o p p o r t u n i t i e s .  When h e  met Moss h e  was t o l d  t h a t  Moss was 

p r e s i d e n t  of  TVM and C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s ,  b u t  was n o t  t o l d  t h a t  

Moss had p r e v i o u s l y  been e n j o i n e d  by t h e  SEC. J . G .  s a y s  h e  

was supposed t o  g e t  h i s  i n v e s t m e n t  back  a t  t h e  end o f  one 

y e a r ,  b u t  t h a t  i t  t o o k  him a n o t h e r  5 months b e f o r e  he  g o t  h i s  

money. H i s  wi fe  n e v e r  r e c e i v e d  any of h e r  money back .  J . G .  

was n o t  p r o v i d e d  w i t h  any sales  m a t e r i a l  o r  f i n a n c i a l  i n fo rma-  

t i o n  a b o u t  TVM. When J . G .  a s k e d  how t h e y  c o u l d  j u s t i f y  t h e  

h i g h  i n t e r e s t  r a t es  h e  was t o l d  t h a t  when you a r e  d e a l i n g  w i t h  

S e a r s  and t h e i r  TVM a c c o u n t s  r e c e i v a b l e  from S e a r s  i t  would 

be  s a f e  enough.  J . G .  s a i d  i f  i t  was a p a y a b l e  from S e a r s  t o  

T V M i t w a s  good enough f o r  him. 

Mrs. N .  m e t  B r a i n a r d  t h r o u g h  a f r i e n d  who went t o  work 

f o r  NEP. She a l s o  a t t e n d e d  an  i n v e s t m e n t  c o u r s e  a t  G u i l f o r d  



T e c h n i c a l  I n s t i t u t e  (GTI) i n  Greensboro which course was run by 

Heybrock a n d  a t  which Brainard was a  guest speaker. Brzinwd came t o  

h e r  home and t a l k e d  t o  M r s .  N .  and h e r  husband a b o u t  i n v e s t m e n t s .  

They f i r s t  i n v e s t e d  i n  mutua l  funds  and i n  a  market  t i m i n g  

s e r v i c e  which i n v o l v e d  t r a n s f e r r i n g  f u n d s  s o  a s  t o  g e t  t h e  

b e s t  r e t u r n .  B r a i n a r d  charged a  1%f e e  f o r  t h i s  s e r v i c e .  

Mrs. N .  o r i g i n a l l y  i n v e s t e d  i n  September 1975 i n  2  mutua l  f u n d s  

a t  $25 a  .month e a c h .  I n  1978, a t  B r a i n a r d 1 s  s u g g e s t i o n  s h e  

removed h e r  money from t h e  mutua l  f u n d s  .and i n v e s t e d  i n  a  

commercial p a p e r ,  TVM, which B r a i n a r d  recommended. TVM was 

paying 10% and s h e  i n v e s t e d  $3,600 on September 6 ,  1978.  

Bra ina rd  s a i d  t h a t  t h e  inves tment  Was a b s o l u t e l y  no r i s k  and 

was a s  good a s  S e a r s q N  She was n o t  t o l d  t h a t  TVM was c o n t r o l l e d  

by Moss or .  t h a t  Moss had p r e v i o u s l y  been e n j o i n e d  from v io -  

l a t i o n s  of f e d e r a l  s e c u r i t i e s  laws.  I f  s h e  had been aware t h a t  

Moss c o n t r o l l e d  TVM and t h a t  he  had p r e v i o u s l y  been e n j o i n e d  

s h e  would no t  have i n v e s t e d  i n  TVM. She was n o t  t o l d  abou t  t h e  

TVM o r g a n i z a t i o n ,  h o w l o n g  i t  had been i n  b u s i n e s s ,  marke t ing  

s t a t u s ,  amount o f  s a l e s ,  amount o f  a c c o u n t s  r e c e i v a b l e  o r  t h e  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  between TVM and C o r r e l a t e d  E q u i t i e s .  She r e c e i v e d  

on ly  one i n t e r e s t  check.  I n  October  1978 s h e  l e a r n e d  about  

t h e  cease  and d 2 s i s t  o r d e r  from t h e  S t a t e  of North C a r o l i n a .  

I n  December s h e  r e c e i v e d  a l e t t e r  from NEP s t a t i n g  n o t  t o  

worry. She  h a s  n o t  g o t t e n  any of h e r  $3,600 inves tment  back.  

Miss W . ,  a t e a c h e r ,  was i n t r o d u c e d  t o  White t h r o u g h  
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a n o t h e r  i n v e s t o r  w i t n e s s ,  M r .  G. ,  and went t o  W h i t e ' s  o f f i c e  

t o  meet him. White recommended TVM and t o l d  h e r  t h a t  i t  was 

an  inves tment  i n  which TVM was l o a n i n g  money t o  S e a r s  and 

t h a t  it was a s  good as S e a r s .  The s t a t e m e n t  t h a t  i t  w a s  "as 

good as  S e a r s "  i n f l u e n c e d  h e r  t o  make t h e  i n v e s t m e n t .  She 

r e c e i v e d  a form e n t i t l e d  Assignment o f  R e c e i v a b l e s  of TVM 

which White s i g n e d  i n  h e r  p r e s e n c e .  She r e c e i v e d  t h i s  r e c e i p t  

on May 15,  1978 when s h e  i n v e s t e d  $10,000 i n  TVM. She was 

n o t  p r o v i d e d  w i t h  any i n f o r m a t i o n  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e  management 

o f  TVM and does  n o t  r e c a l l  t h e  name of Moss. She was no t  t o l d  

t h a t  t h e  p e r s o n  i n  c o n t r o l  o f  TVM had been p r e v i o u s l y  e n j o i n e d  

f o r  v i o l a t i o n s  o f  t h e  f e d e r a l  s e c u r i t i e s  laws. If s h e  had 

known whe would n o t  have  i n v e s t e d  i n  TVM. She r e c e i v e d  $300 

i n  i n t e r e s t  payments b u t  h a s  n o t  g o t t e n  any of h e r  $10,000 

back.  Miss W .  was t o l d  by G .  t h a t  he had c a l l e d  t h e  High P o i n t  

Bank and heen t o l d  t h a t  'IrPM was a good i n y e s t m e n t .  

I n  a d d i t i o n  t o  t h e  f o r e g o i n g  i n v e s t o r s  who t e s t i f i e d  a t  
10/ 

t h e  h e a r i n g  t h e  t e s t i m o n y  of Mrs. B. was r e c e i v e d  i n  evidence. 

M r .  and Mrs. B. met w i t h  B r a i n a r d  i n  August 1978 a t  t h e  NEP 

o f f i c e s  t o  d i s c u s s  t h e  $30,000 r e t i r e m e n t  fund,  which was 

i n v e s t e d  i n  a mutua l  fund.  B r a i n a r d  recommended t h a t  t h e y  

withdraw t h e i r  r e t i r e m e n t  fund  from t h e  mutua l  fund  and i n v e s t  i t  

-10/ T h i s  was t e s t i m o n y  g i v e n  a t  R r a i n a r d ' s  c r i m i n a l  t r i a l .  
Mrs. B.  was deceased  a t  t h e  t i m e  of t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  
h e a r i n g .  
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i n  e i t h e r  a s a v i n g s  a c c o u n t  e a r n i n g  5 1 / 4 % ,  a money market  

fund e a r n i n g  8%, o r  i n  TVM s e c u r i t i e s  pay ing  1 2 % .  M r .  and 

Mrs. B.  t o l d  B r a i n a r d  t h a t  t h e i r  pr imary  concern  was s a f e t y .  

He a s s u r e d  them t h a t  TVM was v e r y  s a f e  and backed by S e a r s  

a c c o u n t s  r e c e i v a b l e .  

The r e t i r e m e n t  f u n d s  were withdrawn and Bra ina rd  

t h e n  met wi th  M r .  and Mrs. B.  a t  t h e i r  home on t h e  even ing  of 

September 27, 1978. A t  t h e  mee t ing  Mrs. B.  reminded 

Bra ina rd  t h a t  she  had p r e v i o u s l y  l o s t  money i n  a n o t h e r  inves tment  

purchase  from B r a i n a r d  and NEP i n  1972. T h i s  was E q u i t a b l e  

Development Corp. where t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  was p u r p o r t e d l y  s e c u r e d  

by a deed of t r u s t  on F l o r i d a  p r o p e r t y  r e c o r d e d  w i t h  t h e  

s t a t e .  However, i t  had t u r n e d  o u t  t h a t  t h e r e  was no deed 

of t r u s t  r e c o r d e d  and t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  proved t o  be w o r t h l e s s .  

Mrs. B. d i d  n o t  want t o  g e t  i n t o  a similar  s i t u a t i o n  wi th  

TVM. B r a i n a r d  r e a s s u r e d  h e r  t h a t  nobody had l o s t  any money 

on i t  (TVM) and t h a t  s h e  a b s o l u t e l y  was n o t  g o i n g  t o  l o s e  

any money on i t .  Mrs. B .  t h e n  w r o t e  a p e r s o n a l  check f o r  $30,000, 

d a t e d  September 27, 1978.  

What M r .  and Mrs. B.  d i d  n o t  know and what B r a i n a r d  

d i d  n o t  t e l l  them was t h a t  he had t h a t  morning r e c e i v e d  t h e  

c e a s e  and d e s i s t  o r d e r  from t h e  S t a t e  of North C a r o l i n a ,  d a t e d  

September 26, 1978.  



None o f  t h e  r e m a i n i n g  r e s p o n d e n t s ,  B r a i n a r d ,  Heybrock and 

White ,  d i s p u t e s  t h a t  TVM was a f r a u d .  T h e i r p r i n c i p a l  a rguments  

a r e  t h a t  t h e y  d i d  n o t  know t h e  t r u e  f a c t s  c o n c e r n i n g  TVM, t h a t  

t h e y  were m i s l e a d  by o t h e r s ,  t h a t  t h e y  made s u f f i c i e n t  i n v e s t i -
-

g a t i o n  t o  s a t i s f y  t h e m s e l v e s  t h a t  e v e r y t h i n g  was a l l  r i g h t ,  t h a t  

-	 t h e y  b e l i e v e d  what t h e y  were  t e l l i n g  i n v e s t o r s ,  t h a t  t h e y  had a 

r i g h t  t o  r e l y  on t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  f u r n i s h e d  them and t h a t ,  i n  any 

e v e n t ,  s c i e n t e r  h a s  n o t  been  p roved .  

B r a i n a r d  t a k e s  t h e  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  a l l  of t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  

made by Moss c o n c e r n i n g  h i s  b u s i n e s s  i n t e r e s t s ,  C o r r e l a t e d  and 

TVM were f a l s e ,  t h a t  he  w a s  duped by Moss. He c o n t e n d s  t h a t  t h e  

i n v e s t i g a t i o n  he made on h i s  one day t r i p  t o  Chicago and t h e  

o r d e r i n g  o f  3 o r  4 Dun & B r a d s t r e e t  r e p o r t s  a r e  s u f f i c i e n t  t o  

a b s o l v e  him of  a l l  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y .  

White a s s e r t s  t h a t  NEP was a l r e a d y  s e l l i n g  TVM when he  became 

a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  t h e  f i r m  and t h a t  he  r e c e i v e d  a l l  o f  h i s  t r a i n i n g  

i n  t h e  s a l e  of TVM from B r a i n a r d .  B r a i n a r d  gave  a l l  o f  t h e  s a l e s -

men a t  NEP t h e  same b a s i c  " s a l e s  p i t c h ' '  t o  g i v e  t o  cus tomers  a b o u t  

TVM. B r a i n a r d  t o l d  t h e  sa le smen ,  i n c l u d i n g  Whi te ,  t h a t  TVM w a s  

n o t  a s e c u r i t y  and t h a t  he had per formed t h e  r e q u i s i t e  due d i l i g e n c e  

on TVM. B r a i n a r d  s a i d  t h a t  NEP had a l e g a l  o p i n i o n  o f  c o u n s e l  t h a t  

TVM w a s  n o t  a  s e c u r i t y .  B r a i n a r d  i n  f a c t  d i d  make a t r i p  t o  Chicago 

t o  i n v e s t i g a t e  TVM. White s a y s  he d i d  n o t  engage  i n  h i g h  p r e s s u r e  

s a l e s  t e c h n i q u e s ,  n o r  d i d  he recommend TVM t o  t h e  e x c l u s i o n  o f  

o t h e r  i n v e s t m e n t s  o f f e r e d  by NEP and IFP.  U n t i l  t h e  c o l l a p s e  o f  

NEP f o l l o w i n g  t h e  c e a s e  and d e s i s t  o r d e r ,  White had no knowledge 



- 26 -

t h a t  t h e r e  was a n y t h i n g  wrong w i t h  t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  o r  t h a t  it 

w a s  c o n s i d e r e d  t o  be  a s e c u r i t y .  

White  m a i n t a i n s  t h a t  he  w a s  m e r e l y  a s a l e s  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  

a t  NEP p r i o r  t o  1976  and  t h a t ' e v e n  a f t e r  he  became a p a r t  owner 

and  was named a v i c e - p r e s i d e n t  t h e  o n l y  a d d i t i o n a l  d u t i e s  he  

was g i v e n  i n v o l v e d  t h e  t r a i n i n g  o f  s a l e s m e n .  B r a i n a r d  had t h e  

m a j o r i t y  i n t e r e s t  i n  NEP and  a l w a y s  p r e v a i l e d  o v e r  t h e  o t h e r  

o f f i c e r s  o r  owners  whenever  a d i s a g r e e m e n t  a r o s e .  

Heybrockl .s  a ~ g u m e n t s  i n  s u p p o r t  o f  h i s  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  he  

dTd n o t  v t o l a t e  a n y  s e c u r r t T e s  l a w s  a r e  c l o s e l y  t o  

t h o s e  of Whi t e ,  He s a y s  t h a t  when he  p u r c h a s e d  a 20% i n t e r e s t  i n  

NE? h e  was t e c h n i ' c a l l y  made a d i r e c t o r  b u t  t h a t  B r a i n a r d  made 

a l l  o f  t h e  d e c i s l o n s .  Hfs  o n l y  a d d i t i o n a l  d u t y  w a s  t o  a ss i s t  

B r a i n a r d  i n  t h e  s e l e c t i o n  of new p r o d u c t s ,  He s a y s  he was n o t  

r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  due  d i l i g e n c e .  He s t a t e s  t h a t  h i s  b e l i e f  i n  TVM 

a s  a v a l i d  i n v e s t m e n t  i s  d e m o n s t r a t e d  by t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he  and  h i s  

f a m i l y  i n v e s t e d  $ 4 0 , 0 0 0  i n  i t  and t h a t  h e  c e r t a i n l y  would n o t  have 

done t h a t  if h e  had had  any  i d e a  t h a t  i t  was a f r a u d .  He p o i n t s  

o u t  t h a t  he  a t t e m p t e d  t o  v a l i d a t e  t h e  UCC-2 fo rms  t h a t  were  u sed  

t o  show t h e  c o l l a t e r a l  b e h i n d  t h e  TVM i n v e s t m e n t s  and  w h i l e  he was 

u n s u c c e s s f u l  t h e  e f f o r t  was s t i l l  underway when t h e  c e a s e  and  de-  

s i s t  ~ r d e rwas r e c e i v e d  by NEP, 

R e s p o n d e n t s '  p r o t e s t a t i o n s  t h a t  t h e y  were  r e l y i n g  on what 

was t o l d  t o  them and  t h a t  t h e y  d i d  n o t  know any  f a c t s  which s h o u l d  

have made them aware  o f  t h e  f a l s i t y  o f  t h e i r  s t a t e m e n t s  a r e  n o t  



s u p p o r t e d  by t h e  r e c o r d .  

Fol lowing h i s  one day v i s i t  t o  Moss i n  Chicago B r a i n a r d  

never  made any ' s e r i o u s  a t t e m p t  t o  v a l i d a t e  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  

b e i n g  f e d  t o  him by Moss. A t  s a l e s  m e e t i n g s  he  downplayed 

t h e  Moss' i n j u n c t i o n  as  a minor v i o l a t i o n ;  he s a i d  he had ob- 

t a i n e d  a Dunn & B r a d s t r e e t  Repo.rt on TVM b u t  n e v e r  made i t  : 

a v a i l a b l e . t o  t h e  sa le smen  o r  p u t  i t  i n  t h e  due d i l i g e n c e  f i l e ;  

he s t a t e d  t h a t  TVM w a s n o t  a s e c u r i t y  and t h a t  he  had a l e g a l  

o p i n i o n  t o  t h a t  e f f e c t ;  he w a s  t o l d  by Moss n o t  t o  make i n -  

q u i r i e s  o f  S e a r s  because  i t  would j e o p a r d i z e  s a l e s ;  he  d i d  r e -  

c e i v e  a f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t  on C o r r e l a t e d ,  d a t e d  September 30,  

1976,  from Moss, who had w r i t t e n  a c r o s s  t h e  f i rs t  page :  "King -
For  your  e y e s  o n l y  - t h i s  s t a t e m e n t  i s  n o t  t o  be  used  t o  i n -

f l u e n c e  a p r o s p e c t  i n  any way, p l e a s e  remember you a r e  d e a l i n g  

w i t h  an  u n r e g i s t e r e d  p r i v a t e  o f f e ~ i n g , ~ ' .  

When White j o i n e d  NEP around May of 1974,  .he was n o t  t o l d  

o f  t h e  Moss i n j u n c t i o n  b u t  l e a r n e d  a b o u t  i t  t h r o u g h  r e a d i n g  t h e  

p r o s p e c t u s  f o r  a p r i v a t e  o f f e r i n g  which NEP was t h e n  s e l l i n g .  

T h i s  was t h e  Longfe r ry  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h i p , p u t  t o g e t h e r  by Moss 

and B r a i n a r d ,  which o f f e r e d  25 u n i t s  a t  $1,995 each  t o  North 

C a r o l i n a  r e s i d e n t s  o n l y .  The p r o s p e c t u s  s e t s  f o r t h  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  

Moss and C o r r e l a t e d  bad r e c e n t l y  c o n s e n t e d  t o  a permanent i n -

j u n c t i o n  by t h e  SEC. When White i n q u i r e d  abou t  t h e  i n j u n c t i o n  

B r a i n a r d  t o l d  him t h a t  i t  was n o t h i n g  s e r i o u s .  L a t e r  t h e  i n j u n c -  

t i o n  was d i s c u s s e d ,  o r  a t  l e a s t  m e n t i o n e d ,  a t  s a l e s  m e e t i n g s  b u t  
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i t  w a s  n e v e r  d i s c l o s e d  t o  p r o s p e c t i v e  i n v e s t o r s .  

White t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e  i n t e r e s t  checks  f o r  TVM, and 

t h e  UCC-2 forms,  were b rough t  t o  Greensboro e v e r y  month by 

Moss and mai led  o u t  by NEP. White n e v e r  saw a UCC-2 form 

stamped " r e c e i v e d  by t h e  S e c r e t a r y  o f  S t a t e  o f  I l l i n o i s "  and 

when he asked Moss abou t  i t  he was t o l d  t h a t  t h e r e  were two 

l i t t l e  o l d  l a d i e s  i n  S p r i n g f i e l d  who do t h e s e  f i l i n g s  and t h e y  
1 

could not be hurried, White was t o l d  by B r a i n a r d  t h a t  Moss would 

n o t  f u r n i s h  f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s  f o r  TVM o r  C o r r e l a t e d .  White 

d i s c u s s e d  TVM w i t h  a t r u s t  o f f i c e r  o f  t h e  High P o i n t  Bank abou t  

c l i e n t s  opening Keogh a c c o u n t s  and i n v e s t i n g  i n  TVM. High 

P o i n t  was t h e  o n l y  bank where t h e  cus tomer  c o u l d  have a s e l f 7  

d i r e c t e d  r e t i r e m e n t  p l a n .  White cannot remember t e l l i n g  t h e  t r u s t  

o f f i c e r  t h a t  TVM w a s  n o t  a s e c u r i t y ,  

White s a i d  t h a t  B r a i n a r d  t o l d  him t h a t  he had checked TVM 

o u t  w i t h  t h e  NEP a t t o r n e y .  However, f o l l o w i n g  t h e  c e a s e  and 

d e s i s t  o r d e r  when t h e  NEP o f f i c e r s  met w i t h  t h e  a t t o r n e y  White 

w a s  q u i t e  s u r p r i s e d  t o  d i s c o v e r  t h a t  t h e  a t t o r n e y  d i d  n o t  know 

abou t  T W .  Fo l lowing  r e c e i p t  o f  t h e  c e a s e  and d e s i s t  o r d e r ,  

money w a s  a c c e p t e d  from i n v e s t o r s  and forwarded t o  Moss i n  

Chicago. 

White n e v e r  q u e s t i o n e d  a n y t h i n g  t h a t  was t o l d  t o  him by 

Moss o r  B r a i n a r d  and n e v e r  made any e f f o r t  t o  o b t a i n  i n f o r m a t i o n .  

o u t s i d e  of NEP. He d i d  n o t  s e e k  a d v i c e  from an a t t o r n e y  and d i d  

n o t  make i n q u i r y  o f  t h e  SEC c o n c e r n i n g  t h e  Moss i n j u n c t i o n .  He 
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made no  a t t e m p t  t o  v e r i f y  t h e  S e a r s  c o n n e c t i o n .  

FIeybrock t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  h e  w a s  t o l d  by e i t h e r  B r a i n a r d  

o f  B i t t i c k  t h a t  he  could. not u s e  s a l e s  l i t e r a t u r e  f o r  TVM be- 

c a u s e  i t  migh t  b e  c o n s i d e r e d  a s e c u r i t y  i f  he  d i d .  He n e v e r  

a s k e d  f o r  any.  i n f o r m a t i o n  a b o u t  Moss o r  a b o u t  c o n t r a c t s  be-

tween TVM and t h e  n a t i o n a l  r e t a i l e r s  w i t h  whom TVM was supposed 

t o  be  d o i n g  b u s i n e s s .  

Heybrock p u r c h a s e d  a 20% i n t e r e s t  i n  NEP i n  1976 and  a t  t h e  

t i m e  he was shown a f i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t  f o r  NEP which showed 

NEP1s p r o p o s e d  income and  h e  s a y s  t h a t  had a l a r g e  impact  on 

h i s  d e c i s i o n  t o  p u r c h a s e  NEP. 

Heybrock s t a t e d  t h a t  f o r  t h e  f i r s t  2 y e a r s  he w a s  a t  NEP, 

he used  t h e  names o f  o t h e r  f i r m s  b e s i d e s  S e a r s  a s  s e c u r i n g  t h e  

commerc ia l  p a p e r  o f  TVM. These  i n c l u d e d  Walgreen and E k e r t s  

and  a b o u t  1 5  o t h e r  companies .  However, many of t h e  p u r c h a s e r s  

r e q u e s t e d  S e a r s  s o  i n  1976 Moss s a i d  "okay,  we've g o t  enough 

S e a r s  p a p e r  a v a i l a b l e ,  w e  w i l l  j u s t  do  everybody w i t h  S e a r s . "  

When Heybrock became v i c e - p r e s i d e n t  he was a s s i g n e d  t o  do 

due d i l i g e n c e  and  B r a i n a r d  s u g g e s t e d  he  might  l o o k  i n t o  TVM. 

Heybrock w r o t e  t o  t h e  S e c r e t a r y  of S t a t e  o f  I l l i n o i s  on September  

21, 1976,  a s k i n g  f o r  a s e a r c h  o f  t h e  f i l e s  i n  h i s  name f o r  a s s i g n e d  

c o l l a t e r a l . .  H e  r e c e i v e d  a r e p l y  t h a t  t h e r e  was no  r e c o r d ,  He 

w r o t e  a g a f n  on O c t o b e r  5 ,  1 9 7 6 ,  f n q u i r i n g  s p e c i f i c a l l y  a b o u t  TVM. 

I n  r e s p o n s e  t h e  S t a t e  o f  I l l i n o i s  i n d f c a t e d  t h e r e  was n o t h i n g  on 

r e c o r d  and  it did not  haTreTVM a t  t h e  a d d r e s s  g i v e n .  



Heybrock r e p o r t e d  t h e  r e s u l t  of  h i s  i n q u i r y  t o  B r a i n a r d  

who c a l l e d  Moss. Moss s a i d  t h a t  I l l i n o i s  was v e r y  s low i n  

a s s i g n i n g  r e c e i v a b l e s  and t h a t  what p r o b a b l y  happened was t h a t  

o l d  i n v o i c e s  had matured and been p a i d  o f f  and new ones  n o t  

y e t  r e c o r d e d .  Heybrock was s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  t h e  e x p l a n a t i o n .  

He d i d  n o t  communicate w i t h  t h e  S t a t e  o f  I l l i n o i s  a g a i n .  

N e i t h e r  d i d  he a t t e m p t  t o  communicate w i t h  S e a r s .  

Heybrock t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he made an i n v e s t m e n t  i n  Long 

F e r r y  s h o r t l y  a f t e r  he j o i n e d  NEP b u t  t h a t  he was n o t  aware 

t h a t  Moss had been e n j o i n e d  by t h e  SEC u n t i l  a f t e r  t h e  c e a s e  and . 

d e s i s t  o r d e r  was i s s u e d .  He s a y s  t h a t  NEP d i d  n o t  s e l l  a n y t h i n g  

t h a t  o f f i c e r s  b e l i e v e d  t o  be  a s e c u r i t y  and t h a t  a l l  s e c u r i t i e s  

were s o l d  t h r o u g h  IFP.  

Heybrock n e v e r  made any e f f o r t  t o  c o n f i r m  i n f o r m a t i o n  g i v e n  

him by B r a i n a r d  o r  Moss. He d i d  n o t  make i n q u i r y  o f  t h e  SEC, 

t h e  NASD o r  o u t s i d e  c o u n s e l  a s  t o  whe the r  o r  n o t  NEP was a 

s e c u r i t y .  Although he t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he was n o t  aware o f  t h e  

Moss i n j u n c t i o n  t h i s  i s  n o t  deemed c r e d i b l e ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  

view of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he purchased  Long P e r r y  whose p r o s p e c t u s  

c a r r i e d  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  abou t  t h e  i n j u n c t i o n .  Also ,  t h e  i n j u n c -  

t i o n  was d i s c u s s e d  a t  s a l e s  m e e t i n g s ,  

I n  J a n u a r y  1975,  B r a i n a r d  and B i t t i c k  made a r rangements  wi th  

a n  i n s u r a n c e  agency i n  F a y e t t e v i l l e ,  North C a r o l i n a ,  t o  s e l l  TVM 

on a  6 %  commission. The p r i n c t p a l  of t h e  agency,  M r .  S . ,had  been 
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a n  a s s o c i a t e  o f  B i t t i c k ' s  a t  Conference  Concepts .  S . ,  who w a s  

a n  NASD p r i n c i p a l ,  was t o l d  by B r a i n a r d  and B i t t i c k  t h a t  TVM 

was a s e c u r i t y  i n  t h e  S t a t e  o f  I l l i n o i s  o n l y  and d i d  n o t  come 

under  SEC o r  NASD r e g u l a t i o n s .  S. was t o l d  t h a t  a maximum Of 

a m i l l i o n  d o l l a r s  a month o f  TVM cou ld  be s o l d .  S .  was shown 

a n  u n a u d i t e d  C o r r e l a t e d  b a l a n c e  s h e e t ,  d a t e d  J u l y  31, 1973.  He 

w a s  n o t  s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  t h i s  and asked f o r  an a u d i t e d  b a l a n c e  

s h e e t  which w a s  promised b u t  which he n e v e r  r e c e i v e d .  

O r i g i n a l l y  S . s e n t  a l l  o f  h i s  TVM b u s i n e s s  d i r e c t l y  t o  Chicago 

b u t  a f t e r  abou t  2  months B r a i n a r d  t o l d  him t o  send i t  t o  Greens-

boro  and t h e y  would i s s u e  t h e  i n t e r e s t  checks  t o  i n v e s t o r s  from 

t h e r e .  $ .had  a  cus tomer  who p u t  i n  between $18,000 and $21,000. 

She wanted t h e  money back i n  1976,  s o  S . s e n t  a l e t t e r  t o  Corre-

l a t e d  i n  c h i c a g o  r e q u e s t i n g  i t .  Two weeks l a t e r ,  when he had n o t  

g o t t e n  t h e  money, & c a l l e d  B r a i n a r d  who s a i d  he would have t o  

check w i t h  Moss. Two d a y s  l a t e r  S . r e c e i v e d  a c a l l  from Moss 

who s a i d  t h a t  he coul8 not send t h e  money back i n  a lump sum. S. 

gave t h e  i n v e s t o r s  t e l e p h o n e  number t o  Moss. The n e x t  day she  

c a l l e d  S.and s a l d  she  was s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  t h e  ar rangement  by which 

Moss was g o i n g  t o  pay h e r  back $3,000 a month. It t o o k  a p p r o x i -  

m a t e l y  6 o r  7  months t o  l i q u i d a t e  a l l  b u t  $5,000. S . a s k e d  Moss 

t o  e x p l a i n  why he  could not r e t u r n  t h e  funds  immedia te ly  and Moss 

s a i d  i t  was because  o f  c a s h  f l o w  problems.  S , c a l l e d  B r a i n a r d  

a f t e r  he t a l k e d  t o  Moss and t o l d  him something  had t o  be wrong 

w i t h  TVM i f  i t  was go ing  t o  t a k e  7  months f o r  t h e  woman t o  g e t  
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h e r  money back .  H e  could not u n d e r s t a n d  why t h e r e  was a c a s h  

f l o w  p rob lem w i t h  a l l  t h e  money b e i n g  s e n t  t o  Moss. S .  was not 

s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  t h e  s t o r y  Moss o r  B r a i n a r d  gave  him s o  he c a l l e d  

B i t t i c k .  B i t t i c k  s a i d  t h a t  u n f o r t u n a t e l y  he  was not t h e  b o s s  o f  

TVM, t h a t  Moss was and t h a t  t h e y  had t o  a c c e p t  what Moss s a i d .  

Thereupon S , a n d  h i s  agency  c e a s e d  s e l l i n g  TVM. T h i s  was a round  

J u l y  23,  1976.  B i t t i c k  and B r a i n a r d  n e v e r  t o l d  S . t h a t  Moss and 

C o r r e l a t e d  had been  e n j o i n e d ,  

I n  September  1974 ,  NEP was h a v i n g  f i n a n c i a l  problems and was 

u n a b l e  t o  meet i t s  b i l l s .  B r a i n a r d  u s e d  some o f  t h e  f u n d s  sub-  

m i t t e d  by i n v e s t o r s  f o r  t h e  p u r c h a s e  o f  TVM. When i t  came t i m e  

t o  s e n d  t h e  TVM f u n d s  f o r  t h e  month t o  Moss i n  Chicago he d i d  n o t  

have  s u f f i c i e n t  f u n d s  t o  match a l l  o f  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n s  f o r  i n v e s t -  

ment i n  TVM s o  h e  s u b m i t t e d  o n l y  a p p l i c a t i o n s  which were e q u i v a -

l e n t  t o  t h e  amount o f '  f u n d s  he had a v a i l a b l e .  The same t h i n g  

occ-ej. i n  O c t o b e r  a n d  November. B r a i n a r d  t h e n  t o l d  B i t t i c k  about  

t h e  s h o r t a g e  o f  f u n d s  and  he c o n t a c t e d  Moss t o  i n f o r m  him o f  t h e  

p rob lem and  what was g o i n g  on .  Moss came t o  Greensboro  t o  d i s c u s s  

t h e  s h o r t a g e  which was a b o u t  $13,800.  Moss had  p r e v i o u s l y  i n d i c a t e d  

a d e s i r e  o f  b u y i n g  i n t o  NEP and had wanted 51% b u t  B i t t i c k  would 

n o t  a g r e e .  A t  t h e  m e e t i n g  i n  Greensboro  i t  was d e c i d e d  Moss would 

buy 30% o f  NEP f o r  $50,000 and he  would pay  $13,800 as down pay- 

ment t o  c o v e r  B r a i n a r d t s  m i s u s e  o f  t h e  f u n d s .  

On Wednesday, September  27, 1978 ,  t h e  c e a s e  and  d e s i s t  o r d e r ,  

d a t e d  September  26,  1978,  was r e c e i v e d  a t  t h e  NEP o f f i c e s  i n  
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Greensboro .  F r a i n a r d  immedia t e ly  c a l l e d  Moss i n  Chicago  and 

t h e n  h e l d  a  mandatory  m e e t i n g  o f  t h e  o f f i c e r s  and  sa l e smen  o f  

NEP. A t  t h e  m e e t i n g  B r a i n a r d  s a i d  t h a t  t h e  SEC -was t r y i n g  t o  
. . 

s a y  t h a t  TVM w a s  a s e c u r i t y ;  t h a t  he f e l t  a l o t  o f  i n s u r a n c e  

d a g e n t s  were b e h i n d  t h e  c e a s e  and d e s i s t  o r d e r  b e c a u s e  NEP had 

c a u s e d  a  l o t  o f  c l i e n t s  t o  c a s h  t h e i r  i n s u r a n c e  p o l i c i e s  and 
-

i n v e s t  i n  TVM. B r a i n a r d  s a i d  t h a t  Moss had n o t  r e c e i v e d  a copy 

o f  t h e  c e a s e  and  d e s i s t  o r d e r  a n d ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  t h e y  would b e  

a b l e  t o  c o n t i n u e  s e n d i n g  f u n d s  t o  him. H e  s a i d  NEP would con-

t i n u e  t a k i n g  f u n d s  t h r o u g h  t h a t  week b e c a u s e  many commitments 

had a l r e a d y  been made; a number of c l i e n t s  had g i v e n  c h e c k t h a t  

had n o t  been  t u r n e d  i n  y e t  s o  t h e y  would c o n t i n u e  t o  t a k e  t h e i r  

i n v e s t m e n t s  t h r o u g h  F r i d a y ,  which was t h e  2 9 t h .  Later ,  B r a i n a r d  

s a i d  t h a t  Moss had t o l d  him t h a t  h e  would return! everyonets 
I 

money a n d ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  t h e  SEC would have  no r e a s o n  t o  p u r s u e  

t h e  m a t t e r .  However, TVM c o u l d  n o t  be  s o l d  f o r  2 o r  3  months.  

B r a i n a r d  n e v e r  a t t e m p t e d  t o  g e t  i n  t o u c h  w i t h  anyone a t  t h e  Nor th  

C a r o l i n a  Depar tment  o f  S e c u r i t i e s  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e . c e a s e  and  d e s i s t  

o r d e r .  N e i t h e r  d i d  he make any  e f f o r t  t o  c o n t a c t  t h e  SEC. 
. . 

-. 
On F r i d a y ,  September  29 ,  1978,  $69 ,769 .66  w a s  w i r e d  t o  Moss 

and 2 c h e c k s ,  one f o r  $53,050 and  one f o r  $7 ,568 .34  were m a i l e d  

t o  him. The f o l l o w i n g  week, when Moss came t o  Greensboro ,  i n d i -

- v i d u a l  checks  from 1 3  i n v e s t o r s ,  t o t a l l i n g  $57 ,000  were g i v e n  t o  

Moss. The t o t a l  amount o f  i n v e s t o r s '  f u n d s  r e t a i n e d  by NEP and 

t u r n e d  o v e r  t o  Moss f o l l o w i n g  t h e  i s s u a n c e  o f  t h e  c e a s e  and d e s i s t  

o r d e r  w a s  $187,388.00 .  

http:$187,388.00


-- 

On November 1, 1973, a compliance examiner from the Com- 


mission's Atlanta Regional Office visited NEP1s offices to make 


a routine examination of Brainard who was registered as an 


investment adviser. The examiner testified that she felt most 


of the people in the office were being very rude, except for 


White, and when she asked him why he told her they were being 

11/ 

investigated for selling TVM. However, while he was the only 

one who was nice to her, he did not mention the cease and de- 

sist order. She was not aware of any other SEC investigation 

at the time she was there. 

While the SEC examiner was at NEP she asked to see files re- 

lating to mutual funds and security investments and also client 

files. Brainard's secretary relayed this information to Brainard 

and he said that the examiner was not to be shown any personal 

client files because she did not need to know the names and ad- 

dresses of any of NEP1s clients. However, the examiner insisted 

on seeing the client files. When the secretary told Brainard 

this he then told her that all documents that were in any way re- 

lated to TVM or Correlated were to be removed from the files. 

Brainard's secretary then went through every single file 

and removed letters, application forms and a few UCC-2 forms in 

2 large filing cabinets. The documents which she collected were 

removed from the building by one of the NEP officers, The sec- 

retary testified, also, that one of the NEP attorneys advised 

her he had talked to the SEC and that she was to gather up all 

-11/ Apparently this was the investigation being conducted by 

Searsr legal staff. See Pgs, 35-37, Infra. 




o l d  and new NEP p l a n n i n g  b r o c h u r e s  and have them' d e l i v e r e d  t o  

h i s  o f f i c e .  He t o l d  h e r  t h e y  were t o  be d e s t r o y e d  p e r  i n s t r u c -

t i o n s  from t h e  SEC. 

The s e c r e t a r y  s t a t e d  she  had c o n v e r s a t i o n s  w i t h  Heybrock 

and White concern ing  t h e  a c t i o n s  she  had t a k e n  abou t  g a t h e r i n g  

* 	 TVFI documents,  some of  which were t a k e n  o u t s i d e  and dumped i n  

t h e  garbage  can .  She s a y s  t h e y  were aware of t h e s e  a c t i v i t i e s  

as she  was no t  t h e  o n l y  one i n  t h e  o f f i c e  removing t h i n g s  from 

t h e  f i l e .  The r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  were a l s o  i n s t r u c t e d  t o  remove 

i n f o r m a t i o n  from t h e i r  f i l e s .  Heybrock and White b o t h  t o l d  h e r  

t h a t  it was a  means of  s imply  k e e p i n g  names and a d d r e s s e s  and 

t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t  from p e o p l e  who had no b u s i n e s s  hav ing  them 

and what she  was d o i n g  was n o t  wrong. That  she  was t o  f o l l o w  

i n s t r u c t i o n s .  

Around t h e  end o f  September 1978,  t h e  manager o f  t h e  S e a r s  

p l a n t  i n  Greensboro r e c e i v e d  a form l e t t e r ,  d a t e d  $e?tmer 26, 1 9 8  

on t h e  l e t t e r h e a d  o f  NEP, a d d r e s s e d  t o  a  p r o s p e c t i v e  i n v e s t o r  

s e t t i n g  f o r t h  i n f o r m a t i o n  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e  s a l e  o f  S e a r s  commer-

c i a l p a p e r  by TVM. The l e t t e r  had been s e n t  t o  t h e  p r o s p e c t  by 

an NEP salesman and t h e  p r o s p e c t  s e n t  i t  t o  S e a r s  t o  conf i rm t h e  

f a c t  t h a t  S e a r s  was s e l l i n g  commercial p a p e r  based on i t s  a c c o u n t s  

r e c e i v a b l e .  

Upon r e c e i v i n g  t h e  l e t t e r  S e a r s  under took  an i n v e s t i g a t i o n  

which was conducted  by an a t t o r n e y ,  M r .  P . ,  i n  i t s  A t l a n t a  o f f i c e .  

M r .  P. checked w i t h  a l l  o f  t h e  v a r i o u s  S e a r s  d e p a r t m e n t s ,  i n c l u d i n g  
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S e a r s  Acceptance  C o r p o r a t i o n  i n  Delaware ,  and l e a r n e d  t h a t  

S e a r s  d i d  n o t  s e l l  commercial  p a p e r .  He t h e n  t e l e p h o n e d  NEP 

i n  Greensboro  and t a l k e d  t o  B r a i n a r d .  He e x p l a i n e d  t h a t  he  

had t h i s  l e t t e r  f rom NEP s t a t i n g  t h a t  REP was o f f e r i n g  S e a r s  

commerc ia l  p a p e r  f o r  s a l e  and wanted an explanatrion as t o  

what a r r a n g e m e n t s  t h e y  had t o  s e l l  s u c h  commercial  p a p e r .  

B r a i n a r d  s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e y  were n o t  s e l l i n g  S e a r s  commerc ia l  

p a p e r ;  t h a t  he  was t h e  o f f i c e  a d m i n i s t r a t o r  and n o t  i n  a  po-

s i t i o n  t o  d i s c u s s  t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  b u t  would check  and c a l l  P .  

back .  

On Oc tobe r  4, 1978,  P r e c e i v e d  a c a l l  f rom Moss who i d e n -  

t i f i e d  h i m s e l f  and s a i d  he  was r e t u r n i n g  t h e  c a l l  f o r  B r a i n a r d  

and i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  he  was s p e a k i n g  f o r  NEP. Moss s a i d  t h e  s a l e s -  

man who s e n t  o u t  t h e  l e t t e r  was a new a g e n t  and t h a t  t h e y  were 

n o t  s e l l i n g  S e a r s  commercial  p a p e r ,  t h a t  t h e y  had n o t h i n g  t o  do 

w i t h  commercial  p a p e r .  He i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  TVM was s e l l i n g  prod-  

u c t s  t o  some of t h e  S e a r s  s t o r e s  and t h e y  would d i s c o u n t  

i n v o i c e s  b u t  t h a t  t h e y  had n o t h i n g  e l s e  t o  d o  w i t h  S e a r s  and he  

would w r i t e  P . a  l e t t e r  a b o u t  t h e  s i t u a t i o n .  However, no l e t t e r  

was e v e r  r e c e i v e d .  

M r .  P. was n o t  s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  the Moss explanation. He next 

checked  w i t h  S e a r s  n a t i o n a l  a c c o u n t s  p a y a b l e  d e p a r t m e n t  a s  t o  

whether  S e a r s  had b u s i n e s s  w i t h  TVM and ,  i f  s o ,  whe the r  o r  n o t  

i t s  a c c o u n t s  p a y a b l e  c o u l d  be d i s c o u n t e d  and s o l d  by NEP. He was 

a d v i s e d  by t h e  n a t i o n a l  manager o f  a c c o u n t s  p a y a b l e  t h a t  S e a r s  
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had not transacted any business with TVM or Correlated Equities. 


P.received the same response from the national manager ofthe S ~ W S  


merchandise buying department. P. says he ascertained that Sears 


operates on a 30 day basis for paying its suppliers. As a re- 


sult of his investigation P,concluded that Sears had never had 


any relationship with TVM. 


It is clear from the record, as the foregoing summary illus- 

trates, that the respondents made material misrepresentations 

and omitted to state material facts in their sales of TVM. In 

addition, despite numerous red flags, they made no attempt to 

ascertain the facts concerning the security they were so avidly 

recommending to prospective investors. No attempt was ever made 

to contact Sears, the SEC, or the NASD and when adverse information 

was received from the State of Illinois nothing was done about 

it. A call to the Sears office in Greensboro would have undoubt- 

edly disclosed the entire fraud as illustrated by the prompt 

action taken by Sears when it was informed of the use being made 

of its name. 

Not only were no efforts made to ascertain the truth during 


the entire period of TVM sales, but following receipt of the cease 


and desist order from the State of North Carolina the respondents 


continued to remit funds to Moss and then engaged in a cover-up 


which involved the destruction of records and concealment of in- 


formation from an SEC examiner. 




- - 

-- 

- -- 
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False representations, or representations that are false 

and misleading because necessary qualifications or explanations 

are omitted,have long been held, in a number of cases, by the 

courts and the Commission, to constitute activity violative 

of the anti-fraud provisions of the securities acts. Charles-

Hughes & Co., v. S'ecurities and Exchange' Cbhmission, 139 P, 2d 

434,437 (2d Cir. 1943); Norris & Bir's'hbQYg v ,  Securities and 

Exchange Commission, 177 F ,  2d 228,233 (D,C, Cir, 1949); Charles 

E. Bailey & Co., 35 S.E.C. 33,43 (1953); Harris Clare & Co,, 

Inc., et al, 43 S,E.C. 198,201 (1966). 

It is fundamental that a misrepresentation or omission must 

be material to serve as a basis for a finding that a violation 

of the anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities laws has 

occurred. The concept of materiality has been described as the 

cornerstone of the disclosure system established by the federal 

securities laws. The basic test adopted by the courts for de- 

termining materiality is whether "a reasonable man would attach 

importance . . . (to those facts) in determining his choice of 
action in the transaction in question." Se'cuYities and Exchange 

C~mmissionv. Texas Gulf Sulphur Co., 401 F. 2d 833,849 (2d Cir. 

19681, cert denied sub. nom Coates v ,  S'ecuritTes h Exchange Com- 

mission, 394 U.S. 976 (1969), Positive proof of reliance is not 


necessary. All that is necessary is that the facts withheld be 


material in the sense that a reasonable investor might have con- 


sidered them important in the making of his decision. 12/ 


12/ 	Affiliated Ute Citizens of Utah, et al. v. United States, 

406 U.S. 128,153 (1972). 




-- 
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L i k e w i s e ,  a n  o m i t t e d  f a c t  i s  mater ia l  i f  t ' d i s c l o s u r e  o f  t h e  

o m i t t e d  f a c t  would have been  viewed by t h e  r e a s o n a b l e  i n v e s t o r  

as  h a v i n g  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  a l t e r e d  t h e  t o t a l  mix o f  i n f o r m a t i o n  

made a v a i l a b l e .  I' -13 /  

Responden t s  a r g u e  t h a t  t h e y  were a l l  duped ,  t h a t  t h e y  made 

t h e s e  f a l s e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  on t h e  b a s i s  o f  "what t h e y  were 

t o l d  by other^.^' B r a i n a r d  c l a i m s  t o  have  been duped by Moss, 

and White  and Heybrock by B r a i n a r d  and  B i t t i c k .  What r e spon-

d e n t s  f a i l  t o  r e a l i z e  i s  t h a t  t h e y  owed a d u t y  t o  t h e i r  c u s t o m e r s  

t o  have  a r e a s o n a b l e  b a s i s  f o r  making s u c h  s t a t e m e n t s .  They had 

a r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ,  n o t  o n l y  as r e g i s t e r e d  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s ,  b u t  

a s  o f f i c e r s  o f  NEP, t o  make a n  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  i n t o  t h e  f a c t s  of 

t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  t h a t  t h e y  o f f e r e d  f o r  s a l e .  I n  Han'ley v.  S.E.C. ,  

415 F. 2d 589 (1969)  t h e  c o u r t  s a i d ,  a t  597:  

Brokers and salesmen are  under a duty t o  investigate,  and t h e i r  
violat ion of t ha t  duty brings them within the term twi l l fu l t  i n  the 
Exchange Act. Thus, a s a l e m  cannot del iberately ignore t h a t  which 
he has a duty t o  know and recklessly s t a t e  f a c t s  zbout matters of 
which he i s  ignorant. He must analyze sa les  l i t e r a t u r e  and must not 
blindly accept recommendations made therein.  . , 

In . . . s m y ,  the  standards . . . a re  s t r i c t .  He cannot rec- 
ommend a securi ty  unless there  is an adequate and reasonable basis  f o r  
such recmendat ion .  He must disclose f a c t s  which he knows and those 
which a re  reasonably ascertainable.  By h i s  r ecmenda t ion  he implies 
t ha t  a reasonable investigation has been made and t h a t  h i s  r e c m n d a t i o n  
r e s t s  on the  conclusions based on such investigation. Where the sales- 
man lacks essent ia l  i n f o m t i o n  about a security,  he should disclose this 
as well as the r i s k s  which a r i s e  from h i s  lack of i n f o m t i o n .  

A salesman may not r e l y  blindly upon the  i ssuer  f o r  i n f o m t i o n  con- 
cerning a company, although the  degree of  independent investigation which 
must be made by a secu r i t i e s  dealer  w i l l  vary i n  each case. Securi t ies  
issued by smaller companies of recent or igin obviously require more 
thorough investigation. 

-13/ TSC I n d u s t r i e s .  I n c .  v ,  Northway. I n c , ,  426 U . S .  438,449 
(19762.  
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In a recent case with f ac t s  closely resembling those hereim, the  Commission 

said : 

"Any professional in the  secur i t ies  business 

should have real ized tha t  debt secur i t ies  can- 

not be recommended t o  customers without first 

obtaining the  most basic and important infor- 

mation about the i ssuer  - i t s  current finan- 

c i a l  s i tuat ion.  To have made such recommen- 

dations, and t o  have made representations a- 

bout the safety of the investment and the good 

f inancial  condition of the  i ssuer  without that 

i n f o m t i o n ,  were egregious violations." 


In the Matter of F i r s t  Pittsburfzh Securi t ies  v- -

Corporation, Securi t ies  and Exchange Act Re- 
lease No. 16897 (June 16. 1980) 20 SEC Docket , - .  
401, 406-407. ("First  Pittsburghtt ) 

The evidence i s  c lear  tha t  the  ~ s p o n d e n t s  made recormndations without such 

i n f o m t i o n  and thereby committed violat ions of the anti-fraud provisions. 

Finally, respondents contend that the  evidence does not support a finding 

that they acted with scienter .  On the contrary, the  record fu l ly  supports a 

finding of awareness on the  part  of each respondent, o r  at the  very l e a s t ,  that 

they were recklessly indifferent t o  the consequences of t h e i r  actions.  -14 /  Ac-

cordingly, it i s  found tha t  respondents acted with the requis i te  scienter.  -15/ 

It i s  found that respondents NEP, IFP, Brainard, White and Heybrock, w i l -

f u l ly  violated and wilful ly  aided and abetted violations of Sections l 7 ( a ) ( l ) ( 2 )  

and (3) of the  Securi t ies  Act and Section U ( b )  of the  Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 

thereunder, 

-4 Recklessness has been held suff ic ient  t o  sa t i s fy  the scienter  requirement. 
See, e.g. M s b a c h  v. Prescott, Ball & Turben, 598 F. 2d 1017,1023-25 (6th 
C i r .  1979); Edward J. Mawod & Co. v. SEC, 591 F 2d 588,595-597 (10th C i r .  
1979); F i r s t  Virginia Bankshares v. &%on,559 F 2d. 1307,1314 (5th C i r .  1977), 
cer t  denied, 435 U.S. 952 (1978). 

-15/ It i s  noted, however, that scienter  i s  not necessary t o  establ ish violations 
of Sections 17(a) (2) and 17(a) (3)  of the  Securi t ies  Act, and the findings of 
fraud herein a r e  made under both those sections. Findings that respondents 
a lso violated 1 7 ( a ) ( l )  of the Securi t ies  Act and Section 10(b) of the Exchange 
Act and Rule lob-5 thereunder a re  merely cumulative. 



Investmnt Adviser Violations 

The Order charges that  during the period fram about 1973 un t i l  November 

27, 1978, NEP and Brainard wilfully violated and IFP, Heybrock and White w i l -

f'ully aided and abetted violations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2) -16/ of the 

Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (Advisers Act) by engaging i n  one o r -  more of 

the ac ts  specifically enumerated under the anti-fraud section of t h i s  decision. 

(See, p . 15, supra. ) 

Brainard argues that in Secllrities and Exchange Cdnrmission v. National 

Executive Planners, Ltd. (See n. 7, p. 13, supra), the court found no violat ion 

of the Investment Advisers Act and that ,  therefore, no finding of violation 

can be made i n  the instant proceeding. However, the record shows that  a Mem-

orandum Opinion and Order was issued by the court pursuant t o  Rule 56 of the 

Federal Rules of C i v i l  Procedures. "Rule 56(d) orders are interlocutory, be-

cause they do not decide the  whole case and therefore are not final decisions," 

Diamond Door Campany v. LaneStanton Lumber Company, 505 F. 2d 1199, 1202 (9th 

C i r .  1974). "Such an order has no r e s  judicata effect  and i s  subject t o  con- 

tinuing change, modification or  reversal by the t r i a l  court." New Amsterdam 

Casualty Co. v. B.L. Jones & Co., 254 P. 2d 917, 919 (5th C i r .  1958). 

It is apparent that  the court ts-  opinion was not premised on the evidence 

presented i n  this proceeding and, therefore, i s  not deternktive of the issues 

herein. 
-
-16/ Section 206 provides, a s  follows: 

It shal l  be unlawful for  any investment adviser, by use of the mils 
or  any means o r  instrumentality of in te r s ta te  c o m r c e ,  direct ly or  in- 
directly-

(1)t o  employ any device, scheme, o r  a r t i f i c e  t o  defraud any cl ient  
o r  prospective cl ient  ; 

( 2 )  t o  engage i n  any transaction, practice, o r  course of business 
which operates a s  a fraud o r  deceit upon any c l ient  o r  prospective c l ient .  



Brainard has been registered as an investment adviser with 


the Commission pursuant to Section 203(c) of the Advisers Act 


since December 15, 1975. NEP, White and Heybrock have not been 


registered as investment advisers 17/ but have, nevertheless, as 
-

the record shows,been acting in that capacity. (See p. 7, supra). 


NEP solicited investors through a letter offering a Market 


TiminNrvice at a charge of 1% of the assets managed. Market 


timing was described as "a means by which we have been able to 


dramatically increase the return from our mutual funds by moving 


into a fixed return during a declining market and into a growth 


situation during an increasing market." The letter went on to say 


"you may wish to invest in Commercial Paper paying 10% interest 


which we now offer . . . . If you wish to participate in the 

Market Timing service, please sign the enclosed form. This will 


allow us to switch the funds from a growth situation into some 


fixed return." The letter, as well as NEP prospectuses, was used 


by all salesmen. 


NEP was compensated by the charging of a fee for its Market 


Timing service; by commissions from the sales of TVM; and by an 


override on all security and mutual fund transactions which it 


referred to IFF. (See p. 8, supra). White and Heybrock received 


-171 Section 202 (a) (11) of the Advisers Act provides : "Investment Adviser" 
means any person who, for compensation, engages in the business of ad- 
vising others, . . . as to the value of securities or as to the advis- 
ability of investing in, purchasing, or selling securities, or who, for 
compensation and as part of a regular business, issues or promulgates 
analyses or reports concerning securities; 
IV . . . a person who provides market tBnfng seTvlces would be viewed as being 
in the Busfness of giving investment advice. ' hvestment Adviser Act Rel . 
No. 769/August 7, 1981, 23 SEC Docket 556,560. 
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co~ssionson TVM sales and, as officers, participated in NEP1s earnings 

through bonuses and other perquisites. 

The record fully supports a finding that NEP, FJhite and Heybrock were 
-18/ 

acting as investment advisers. 

In the capacity of investment advisers respondents owed an even more 

stringent duty to their clients than that owed by securities salesmen. As 

the Supreme Court stated in Securities and Exc'ha@e Cassion v. Capital 

Gains Research Bureau, 275 U.S. 180,194 (1963)~ an investment adviser is a 

fiduciary who owes his clients "an arfirmative duty of utmost good faith and 

full and fair disclosure of material facts." The very enactment by Congress 

of the Advisers Act evinced recognition of the nature of the advisory relation- 

ship and of the need for a regulatory scheme to protect investors from such 

persons who may engage in fraudulent and deceptive practices. Abrahamson v. 


Fleschner, (supra); Secur'iti'eS'8nd E x c h ~ ' C ~ S S ~ n  'Myers 285 F. Supp.
v. 
J 

743,746 (D.C. Md. 1968). 


Section 206 of the Advisers Act is analogous to the anti-fraud 

provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. In fact 

the language of Sections 206(1) and (2) is from 17(a)(l) and 17(a) 

( 3 ) ,  respectively, of the Securities Act. Therefore, the activities 

of respondents, explored and discussed heretofore in the preceding 

anti-fraud section, constitute violations of Sections 206(1) and 206 

(2) of the Advisers Act, as charged in the Order. 


The Order charges IFF, White and Heybrock with aiding and 

abetting the violations of NEP and Brainard. 1n"SEC -v, CoTfeg 493 

-18/ Investment Advisers Act of 1940 Release No. 770/August 13, 1981, 23 SEC 
Docket 556;', AB~ahanlWn v, "FT&Mer, 568 F. 2d 862, 870 (2nd Cir. 1977), 
cwt, de~~i&%Tb.' rtcrm, %my O o o d t i ~& 'Ccmpany v:'Ab'rmn, 98 S. Ct,
m(ig7-K--



F. 2d 1304,1316 ( 6 t h  C i r .  19741,  c e r t .  d e n i e d ,  420 U.S. 908 (1975) ,  


t h e  c o u r t  s a i d  : 


II  . . . we f i n d  t h a t  a p e r s o n  may b e  h e l d  as  a n  a i d e r  and 
a b e t t o r  o n l y  i f  some o t h e r  p a r t y  h a s  committed a s e c u r -
i t i e s  l a w  v i o l a t i o n ,  i f  t h e  a c c u s e d  p a r t y  had g e n e r a l  
awareness  t h a t  h i s  r o l e  was p a r t  o f  a n  o v e r a l l  a c t i v i t y  
t h a t  i s  i m p r o p e r ,  and i f  t h e  a c c u s e d  a i d e r - a b e t t o r  r. 

knowingly and s u b s t a n t i a l l y  a s s i s t e d  t h e  v i o l a t i o n . "  
See ,  a l s o ,  Wootiward v .  pvI'etYb 'Bank o f  Dallas,  522 F. 2d 
84,97 ( 5 t h  C i r .  '1975);  I n  t'h'e Na'tt'eY ' o r  C a r t e r  and ,. 
Johnson ,  S e c u r i t i e s  Exchange Act R e l .  No. 17597/February  
28, 1 9 8 1 .  22 SEC Docket 292, 316. 

The r e c o r d  d i s c l o s e s  t h a t  t h e  conduc t  o f  White  and Heybrock 

b r o u g h t  them s q u a r e l y  w i t h i n  t h e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  f o r  a n  a i d e r  and 

a b e t t o r .  They were aware o f  t h e i r  p a r t  I n  t h e  o v e r a l l  a c t i v i t y  

a t  l e a s t  by 1976.  (See p .  29 ,' s h p r a ) , 

A c c o r d i n g l y ,  i t  i s  found t h a t  NEP and B r a i n a r d  w i l f u l l y  v i o -  

l a t e d  and TFP, White and Heybrock w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and  a b e t t e d  v i o -  

l a t i o n s  of S e c t i o n s  206(1 )  and  2 0 6 ( 2 )  o f  t h e  A d v i s e r s  A c t ,  It i s  

found,  a l s o ,  t h a t  r e s p o n d e n t s  c l e a r l y  had t h e  s c i e n t e r  n e c e s s a r y  

t o  e s t a b l i s h  t h e  violations o f  S e c t i o n  2 0 6 ( 1 ) .  I n  any e v e n t ,  

f i n d i n g s  o f  s c i e n t e ~a r e  n o t  r e q u i ~ e d  i n  o r d e r  t o  e s t a b l i s h  v i o -  

l a t i o n s  of S e c t i o n  2 0 6 ( 2 ) .  See  Stea'dman v ,  S'.E.C., 603 F. 2d 1126,  

1134 ( 5 t h  C i r .  1 9 7 9 ) ,  a f f l d  450 U.S, 9 1  (1981) .  See  a l s o  --S,E.C. 

v .  C a p i t a l xG'aih's' Re'sQBYkh Bur'eaW, 'Ihc. 375 U.S. 180,195,200 (1963) ;  

A'aron v .  S . E . C .  446 U.S. 680,  691-693, 696-697 ( 1 9 8 0 ) .  A l l  f i n d i n g s  

'of f r a u d  a r e  made u n d e r  t h e  l a t t e ~s e c t l o n .  The f i n d i n g  t h a t  r e -

s p o n d e n t s  a l s o  v i o l a t e d  S e c t i o n  206(.1) a r e  m e r e l y  c u m u l a t i v e ,  



Inves tment  Advise r  R e g i s t r a t i o n  P r o v i s i o n s  

The Order  a l s o  c h a r g e s  t h a t  d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  from about  

1973 t o  November 27, 1978,  NEP w i l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  and IFF, B r a i n a r d ,  

White and Heybrock w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and a b e t t e d v i o l a t i o n s  o f  

S e c t i o n  2 0 3 ( a )  -1 9 /  of  t h e  Advise r s  Act by engaging i n  b u s i n e s s  

as an  i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i s e r  when NEP was n o t  r e g i s t e r e d  a s  such wi th  

t h e  Commission p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  203(c )  o f  t h e  Advise r s  Act .  

Having found i n  t h e  p r e c e d i n g  s e c t i o n  o f  t h i s  d e c i s i o n  t h a t  

NEP was engaged i n  b u s i n e s s  as an i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i s e r  w i t h  t h e  

a s s i s t a n c e  of I F P , B r a i n a r d ,  White and Heybrock, and t h e  r e c o r d  

showing w i t h o u t  d i s p u t e  t h a t  NEP was n o t  r e g i s t e r e d  w i t h  t h e  

Commission a t  a n y t i m e ,  i t  f o l l o w s  t h a t  S e c t i o n  203(a )  of' t h e  

Advise r s  Act was v i o l a t e d .  

A c c o r d i n g l y , : i t  i s  found t h a t  NEP w i l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  and IPP, 

B r a i n a r d ,  White and Heybrock w i l f u l l y  a i d e d  and a b e t t e d  v i o l a t i o n s  

o f  S e c t i o n  2 0 3 ( a ]  o f  t h e  A d v i s e r s  A c t .  '20/ -

-1 9 /  S e c t i o n  2 0 3 ( a )  p r o v l d e s ,  i n  p e r t i n e n t  p a r t ,  t h a t  it s h a l l  be 
un lawfu l  f o r  any inves tment  a d v i s e r ,  u n l e s s  r e g i s t e r e d ,  t o  
make use  o f  t h e  m a i l s  o r  any means o r  i n s t r u m e n t a l i t y  of  
i n t e r s t a t e  commerce i n  c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  h i s  o r  i t s  b u s i n e s s  
as an  inves tment  a d v i s e r .  

-20/ Except  f o r  t h e  a n t i - f r a u d  p ~ o v i s i o n s  o f  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  laws 
i t  i s  w e l l  e s t a b l i s h e d  t h a t  a f i n d i n g  of w i l f u l l n e s s  does 
n o t  r e q u i r e  an  i n t e n t  t o  v i o l a t e  t h e  law; i t  i s  s u f f i c i e n t  
t h a t  t h e  p e r s o n  charged w i t h  t h e  d u t y  knows what he i s  do ing .

-> 

B i l l i n g s  A s s o c i a t e s ,  I n c . ,  43 S.E.C." 641, 649 C1967). !Pager- 
v .  S.E.C. 3 4 4  F. 2d 5 , 8  (1965) ;  Hughes v .  S.E.C., 1 7 4  F. 2d 
969, 977 (1949) .  



Broker-Dealer Registration Provisions 

The Order charges that during the period k.om about 1973 and continuing 

u n t i l  November 27, 1978, NEP wilf'ully violated and IFP, Brainard, White and 

21/
Heybrock wilfully aided and abetted violations of Section 15(a) -  of the 

Exchange Act, i n  tha t  NEP engaged in secur i t ies  transactions while it was not 

registered with the C o ~ s s i o n  pursuant t o  Section 15(b) of the Exchange Act. 

NEP sold TVM t o  over 700 investors during a 4 year period. Total sales  

of TVM amounted t o  $4,375,000 k.m which NEP received at l eas t  $547,000 i n  

cornnissions. In addition, NEF sold secur i t ies  of Equitable Developrent and 

limited partnership in te res t s  in Longferry f o r  which it also received corn 

missions. Moreover, *\TEP received an override canmission k.m IFP, pursuant t o  

an agreement, fo r  a l l  secur i t ies  sa les  effected through Il?P. Consequently, the 

record clear ly establishes that NEP "engaged i n  b u s i n e ~ s ' ~  a s  a broker-dealer 

without being so registered,  -22/ One of the  investors who t e s t i f i e d  i n  this 

proceeding .said he thought 1WP was a brokerage firm. 

It i s  found tha t  NEP wilful ly violated and IFF, ba ina rd ,  White and Hey- 

brock wilfully aided and abetted violations of Section 15(a) of the Exchange 

Act. 23/-

-21/ Section 15(a)(1) provides, i n  pertinent part  t ha t  it shall be unlawful fo r  
any broker o r  dealer . . . t o  make use of the  mils o r  any means o r  instru- 
mentality of in t e r s t a t e  corrmerce t o  effect  any transactions in, o r  t o  induce 
o r  attempt t o  induce the purchase o r  sa l e  of ,  any securi ty . . . unless such 
broker o r  dealer i s  registered i n  accordance with subsection (b) of t h i s  
sect ion. 

-22/ Section 3(a)(4)  provides that the  term "broker" means any person engaged in 
the business of effect ing transactions in secur i t ies  fo r  the account of 
others . . . Section 3(a)(5)  provides tha t  the term "dealertt means any per- 
son engaged i n  the  business of buying and se l l ing  secur i t ies  for  his own ac- 
count,, through a broker o r  otherwise . . . 
See, also, Securi t ies  and Exchange C q s s i o n  v. Cent- Investment Transfer 
-Corp. CCH ~ e d .  Sec. L. Rep. (1971-72 Transfer Binder) 893, 232 (S.D.N.Y. 1971); 
I'TT v. Cornfeld, 619 P. 2d 909,923 (2nd C i r .  1980); In  the  Matter of Profes- 
s ional  Inves to~s ,  Inc. , 37 S ,E. C. 173 (1956) ; Eugene T. IehinoSe,Jr., Secur-
i t i e s  Exchar@e Act Release No, 17381/December 16, 1980, 21 SEC Docket 970. 

-23/ See r l .  ;)o, sup? conccrnjnl: a fIr~tllnf: of w t l  fu-I lncx:::; few :i non-fr.:lud v io-
lation. 
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Public Interest 


The remaining issue concerns the remedial action which is 


appropriate in the public interest with r.espect.to the respon- 


dents who have been found to have committed certain violations 


I) as alleged in . . the Order. The Division 'urges that IFP1s regis- 

tration as a broker-dealer, and Brainardts registration as an in- 

vestment adviser, be revoked and that NEP, Brainard, White and 

Heybrock all be barred from association with a broker-dealer, in- 

vestment adviser or municipal securities dealer, with the ex- 

ception that White and Heybrock have a right to reapply after. 5 

years. 

The particular remedial action as to an individual respon- 


dent depends on the facts and circumstances applicable to him 


and cannot be measured precisely on the basis of action taken 

24/ 

against other respondents, particularly where, as here, the 

action respecting others is based on offers of settlement which 
. -25/ 

the Commission deemed appropriate to accept. 


Brainard asserts that he made a reasonable investigation 


into TVM and that his reliance on the information he received 


was reasonable. Also, that his age, experience, restitution pay- 


ment, prior record and prior litigation in this matter must be con- 


sidered in arriving at the sanctions to be imposed. 


White argues that he was entitled to rely on the information 


being given to him by Brainard and Bittick; that he was not aware 


of anything wrong with TVM until the cease and desist order3 that 


he cooperated in the investigation and was not indicted; that he 


-24/ See Dlu'gash v. S.E.C., 373 F. 2d 107,110 (2nd Cir. 1967). 

-25/ See Cortlandt Investing Corporation, et al, 44 S.E.C. 45,54 
(1969); Haight & Company, Inc., 44 3 . h . C .  q81,512-612 (1971) 
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has voluntarily 'made restitution and that any violations he may 


have committed were not wilful1 but were done unknowingly and un- 


intentionally; and that he has a previously unblemished record. 


Heybrock advances practically the same arguments as White 


but, in addition, points out that he and his family invested 


heavily in T'VM and that he did make inquiry of the State of Illi- 


nois. He, also, says he was not indicted, that he cooperated 


fully i n  the investigation. and that he mad.e restitution. 


The restitution which all of the respondents refer to arose 


from a judgement emtered by the U.S. District Court in the case 


of George C. Simkins, Jr., e't a1 v, National Exe'cu'tive Planners, 


-Ltd., in which judgement was entered for the plaintiffs against 

the respondents, as follows: Braina~d $2,966,140.45; White $158,891. 

39; Heybrock $143,678.97. The c o u ~ t  later appointed a receiver 

and upon his recommendation respondents settled as follows: Brainard 

$45,000; White $16,500; Heybrock $16,500, 

NEP was the center of all of the activity discussed and vio- 


lations found herein. Its salesmen rendered investment advice 


and sold numerous secu~ities to the public although it was never 


registered as an investment adviser or broker-dealer. All of NEPts 


salesmen were required to be registered representatives with IPP, 


which was a registered broker-dealer, but allowed its represent- 


atives to sell unregistered securities through NEP. It should be noted 


that IPP has inte~posed no defense to the charges in the Order and, 


accordingly, has in effect defaulted. 


http:$143,678.97


The v i o l a t i o n s  found h e r e i n  a r e  e x t e n s i v e  and s e r i o u s  and 

were t h e  r e s u l t  o f  a scheme t o  d e f r a u d  i n v e s t o r s ,  o r g a n i z e d  and 

d i r e c t e d  by Moss b u t  w i l l i n g l y  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  b y . B r a i n a r d ,  White 

and Heybrock. A l l  o f t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  r e s p o n d e n t s  have b e e n  e n j o i n e d  

and t h e  Commission h a s  found i t  i n  t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  t o  impose 
26/ 

s a n c t i o n s  based  on s u c h  injunction. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  B r a i n a r d  h a s  
rn 


been c r i m i n a l l y  c o n v i c t e d .  

I n  view o f  a l l  o f  t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s ,  i t  i s  concluded t h a t  

t h e  e x t e n t  and- c h a r a c t e r  o f  t h e  v i o l a t i o n s  r e q u i ~ e s  t h a t  t h e  

r e s p o n d e n t s  be exc luded  from t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  b u s i n e s s .  A s  t h e  

c o u r t  s a i d  i n  Apthur L i p p e r  Corp .  v .  S.E.C. ,  547 F.2d 171 ,  184 

( 2 d  C i r .  1976) ,  c e r t .  de'nied, 434 U.S. 1009:  

"The purpose  o f  such  s e v e r e  s a n c t i o n s  must be 
t o  d e m o n s t r a t e  n o t  o n l y t o f p e t i t i o n e r s  b u t  t o  
o t h e r s  t h a t  t h e  Commission w i l l  d e a l  h a r s h l y  
w i t h  e g r e g i o u s  c a s e s .  I t  

I n  Steadman v .  S e c u r i t i e s  and Exchange CbmmTssTon, 603 F ,  2d 

1126. ( 5 t h  C i r . .  1 9 7 9 ) ,  a f f l d  450 U.S. 9 1  (1981.), t h e  c o u r t  s a i d  t h a t  

when t h e  Commission imposes s e v e r e  s a n c t i o n s  i t  "shou ld  a r t i c u l a t e  

why a l e s s e r  s a n c t i o n  would n o t  s u f f i c i e n t l y  d i s c o u r a g e  o t h e r s  from 

engag ing  i n  t h e  u n l a w f u l  conduct  i t  s e e k s  t o  a v o i d . "  

R e g i s t e r e d  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s  and i n v e s t m e n t  a d v i s e r s  engag ing  

i n  t h e  t y p e  o f  conduct  p r a c t i c e d  by r e s p o n d e n t s  impose a social  

c o s t  on t h e  community which must be c o n s i d e r e d ;  Not o n l y  d i d  i n -  

v e s t o r s  l o s e  a g r e a t  d e a l  o f  money, b u t  t h e  S t a t e  o f  Nor th  C a r o l i n a ,  

t h e  SEC, The P o s t a l  I n s p e c t o r s ,  t h e  U.S. A t t o r n e y t . s  O f f i c e  and t h e  

F e d e r a l  Cour t  sys tem have  been r e q u i r e d  t o  d e v o t e  a g r e a t  d e a l  o f  
' 1 . .  . \ 

26/ George 8 , 'Va l ' l ace  & Co.,  39 S.E.C. 306 ( 1 9 5 9 ) ;  Rlhball 
F 

SecurS't5e's\, Th 'c . ,  39 S.E.C. 921 (-1960). 
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their resources to protect the public from the fraud and deception 


practiced by respondents. Broker-dealers and investment advise~s 


must be put on notice that such conduct will not be tolerated. 


Accordingly, it is Believed that any sanction less than a bar 


would be ineffectual. 


OFDER 


Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED1 


( 1  The regist~ation as a broker-dealer of Investors Financial 


Planning, Inc. is revoked and the firm is expelled from member- 


ship in the National Association of Securities Dealers. 


(2) The yegistration as an investment adviser of Dan King Brainard 


is revoked. 


(3) National Executive Planners, Ltd., Dan King Brainard, Richard 


0. White and Henry Leroy Heybrock, and each of them, is barred 


from association with a broker-dealer, investment adviser or mu- 

27/

7

nicipal securities dealer. 


This orde~ shall become effective in accordance with and sub- 


ject to the provisions of Rule 17 (f) of the Corrrmissionls Rules of Practice. 


Pursuant to Rule 17(f), this initial decision shall become the 

final decision of the Commission as to each party who has not,within 

fifteen days after se~vice of the initial decision upon him, filed a 

petition for review pursuant to Rule 17(b), unless the Commission, 

pursuaht tb' Rule 17Xd') ,' tTeteYhiihk's' bh' TtY b*rA\ ihi%?at'iVe to review 

-271 It should be noted that a bar order does not preclude mking such application 
to the Cgnqx&ssior;l,$,.the future as my,,bewarranted by the then existing 
facts. . "E'mY .'\S.'B,'C, , 017 F. 2d 1058,1060 (2d Cir . 1969); Ymasco v. S ,E ,C , , 
395 F. 2w9,3537'23'-cir. 1968). 
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t h i s  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  a s  t o  hi^. I f  a p a r t y  t i m e l y  f i l e s  a  

p e t i t i o n  f o r  r ev iew,  o r  t h e  Commission t a k e s  a c t i o n  t o  r ev iew 

a s  t o  a  p a r t y ,  t h e  i n i t i a l  d e c i s i o n  s h a l l  n o t  become f i n a l  w i t h  
-28/ 

r e s p e c t  t o  t h a t  p a r t y .  

Washington, q . C .  
September 24, 1982 

-281 A l l  p roposed f i n d i n g s ,  c o n c l u s i o n s ,  and c o n t e n t i o n s  have 
been c o n s i d e r e d ,  They a r e  a c c e p t e d  t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  t h e y  
a r e  c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  t h i s  d e c i s i o n .  




